
LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2019, 6:00 PM 
 
Santiam Travel Station 750 S. Third Street, Lebanon, OR 97355 

 
 

 
AMENDED MEETING AGENDA 

Meeting Agenda September 12, 2019                1  

 

 

1.    WELCOME 

A. Call to Order 
B. Flag Salute 

 
2.    LHS UPDATE              Action:  Informational 
 

3.    AUDIENCE COMMENTS 

This is a time for citizens to address the Board. The Chair will recognize speaker(s) at the designated 
time. All speakers shall identify themselves and state their name before speaking. Speakers are 
asked to provide their name, address and telephone number on the Speaker’s Sign-in Sheet. Each 
speaker may address the Board for three minutes. 
 

4.     GET OREGONIZED ACKNOWLEDGEMENT                   Action:  Informational 
 
5.     SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLAN                    Action:  Informational 
 
6.     RESOLUTION 1920-2 (GO Bond Refunding)            Action:  Approval Requested 

 
7.     CONSENT AGENDA                Action:  Approval Requested 

 
 A.     August 8, 2019 Meeting Minutes 
 B.     Updated Organizational Chart  
 C.     Policies - Second Reading: 
 
 

Code Title 
JFCF Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, Cyberbullying, 

Teen Dating Violence or Domestic Violence - Student 
GBNA Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing or Cyberbullying 

- Staff 
 
 
 D.     Hiring: 
  

Name Position FTE Start Date 
  Laura Eason   Music/Band Teacher  1.0 FTE 8/27/19 
  Kelsey Harris   Counselor/Secondary 1.0 FTE 8/27/19 
  Carole Robinson   Elementary Teacher 1.0 FTE 8/27/19 



Meeting Agenda September 12, 2019 2 

 
 
 

TEMPORARY 2019-2020     
Jennifer Baugh Elementary Teacher 1.0 FTE 8/27/19 11/26/19 
Debra Price Elementary Teacher 1.0 FTE 8/27/19 11/26/19 

 
 
8.     FACILITIES EVALUATION             Action:  Approval Requested 
 
9.     LONG RANGE FACILITIES PLAN            Action:  Approval Requested 
 
10.     SUPERINTENDENT’S EVALUATION                   Action:  Discussion 
 
11.     DEPARTMENT REPORTS                        Action:  Informational  

A. Operations 
B. Human Resource 
C. Finance 

 
12.    COMMUNICATION  Action:  Informational 

A Board 
B. Superintendent 

 

13.   AUDIENCE COMMENTS 

The Lebanon Community School District Board of Directors welcomes you to our regular meeting. 
It is the Board's goal to hold an effective and efficient meeting to conduct the business of the 
District. In keeping with this goal, the Board provides a place for Audience Comments on each of 
its regular agendas. This is a time when you can provide statements or ask questions. The Board 
allows three minutes for each speaker. The language below discusses the Public Meetings Law and 
public participation in such meetings. 
 
"The Public Meetings Law is a public attendance law, not a public participation law. Under the 
Public Meetings Law, governing body meetings are open to the public except as otherwise 
provided by law. ORS 192.630 The right of public attendance guaranteed by the Public Meetings 
Law does not include the right to participate by public testimony or comment. 
 
"Other statutes, rules, charters, ordinances, and bylaws outside the Public Meetings Law may 
require governing bodies to hear public testimony or comment on certain matters. But in the 
absence of such a requirement, a governing body may conduct a meeting without any public 
participation. Governing bodies voluntarily may allow limited public participation at their 
meetings.” 
 
Oregon Attorney General's Administrative Law Manual and Uniform and Model Rules of 
Procedure under the Administrative Procedures Act. Hardy Myers, Attorney General, 
March 27, 2000. 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Agenda September 12, 2019 3 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
Upcoming Board Meeting Dates: 
October 10, 2019, 6:00 PM at LHS Land Lab 
November 14, 2019, 6:00 PM at Santiam Travel Station 
December 12, 2019, 6:00 PM at Santiam Travel Station 



Attachment  

 

BOARD 
MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Jennifer Meckley, Assistant Superintendent 
 
Date: September 5, 2019   Meeting Date:  September 12, 2019    
 
Re: School Improvement Plan 
 
 
 
The District Leadership Team has aligned our processes around school improvement.  The team 
developed a system for examining school and classroom level data and created common templates to 
track progress toward goals and determine where support is needed.   

 

The District and School Improvement Process: 

District Continuous Improvement Plan (CIP) 

• District level goals set  
• District level action steps to meet goals created 

School Improvement Plan (SIP) 

• School goals aligned with district goals 
• School level action steps to meet goals created 

Grade Level and Classroom Level Supports 

• Grade level and classroom goals aligned with school and district goals 
• Principals determine grade levels and/or classrooms needing support to meet goals.   
• Teachers set goals for growth and achievement 
• Students set goals for growth and achievement 

 

 
Page 4



 
Page 5



 
Page 6



 
Page 7



 
Page 8



 
Page 9



 
Page 10



 
Page 11



 
Page 12



School Attendance rate Number of students participating
Cascades 56% 70
Green Acres 52% 40
Hamilton Creek & 
Lacomb 59% 65
Pioneer 65% 37
Riverview 69% 35

School Number of students participating
Cascades 70
Green Acres 40
Hamilton Creek & Lacomb 65
Pioneer 37
Riverview 35

Staff: 38 teachers and instructional assistants

Meals served: 14,522

Parent survey results
28 parents completed the survey
"Summer school experience overall satisfaction":
64% rated it a 5
28%  rated it a 4
7% rated it a 3

Total Budget:
Staffing $82,835.22
Field trip/Enrichment $1,207
Materials/supplies $1,000

$85,042.22

 
Page 13



RESOLUTION – PAGE 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1920-2 

 

A RESOLUTION OF LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 9, LINN 

COUNTY, OREGON AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND PRIVATE NEGOTIATED 

SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2019 TO REFUND 

ALL OR A PORTION OF THE DISTRICT’S OUTSTANDING GENERAL 

OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2005 AND GENERAL OBLIGATION 

REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2011; DESIGNATING AN AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE, BOND COUNSEL, UNDERWRITER; AUTHORIZING 

APPOINTMENT OF A PAYING AGENT AND BOND REGISTRAR, INDEPENDENT 

REGISTERED MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL ADVISOR, ESCROW AGENT AND 

VERIFICATION AGENT; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A BOND 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND ESCROW DEPOSIT AGREEMENT. 

 

 

WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes (“ORS”) Sections 287A.365 to 287A.380 authorize the issuance 

of obligations to advance refund outstanding obligations. Lebanon Community School District No. 9, Linn County, 

Oregon (the “District”) is advised it may be desirable to refund all or a portion of the District’s outstanding General 

Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 (the “Series 2005 Bonds”) and the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 

Series 2011 (the “Series 2011 Bonds”). 

 

WHEREAS, the Series 2005 Bonds are dated April 20, 2005 and were issued in the original principal 

amount of $19,515,000.  The Series 2005 Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.   

 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2005 Bonds were used to refund a portion of the District’s 

outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001 and to pay the costs of issuance. 

 

WHEREAS, the Series 2011 Bonds are dated March 22, 2011 and were issued in the original principal 

amount of $27,630,000.  The Series 2011 Bonds maturing on June 15, 2022 and on any date thereafter are 

subject to redemption at the option of the District, in whole or in part at any time on and after June 15, 2021, at a 

redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Series 2011 Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued 

interest thereon to the redemption date.  If fewer than all of the Series 2011 Bonds of a maturity are called for 

redemption, the selection of Series 2011 Bonds within a maturity to be redeemed shall be made by Depository 

Trust Company in accordance with its operational procedures then in effect.   

 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds were used to refund a portion of the District’s 

outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001 and to pay the costs of issuance.  

 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019 (the “Series 2019 

Bonds”) will be for the purpose of providing funds sufficient to (i) refund all or a portion of the Series 2005 Bonds 

and Series 2011 Bonds, and (ii) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. The Series 2019 Bonds will 

be issued as general obligation bonds of the District payable from a direct ad valorem tax upon all of the taxable 

property within the District in sufficient amount, without limitation as to rate or amount to the extent funds from 

other legally available resources are not available, to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds 

promptly as they become due and payable. The owners of the Series 2019 Bonds shall not have a lien or security 

interest on the property refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF LEBANON 

COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 9, LINN COUNTY, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

  

 
Page 14



RESOLUTION – PAGE 2 

Section 1. Issuance of Series 2019 Bonds. The Board of Directors of the District authorizes the issuance 

and private negotiated sale of the Series 2019 Bonds in one or more series. The Series 2019 Bonds shall be issued 

as federally taxable bonds, with the interest being includable in income for federal income tax purposes, in 

denominations of $5,000 each, or integral multiples thereof, as negotiable general obligation bonds of the District. 

The Series 2019 Bonds shall be sold at not less than ninety-eight percent (98%) of par value, disregarding any 

original issue discount or bond insurance premiums.  The District authorizes the Superintendent or the Director of 

Business Services (the “Authorized Representative”), to determine and designate the principal amount, the dated 

date, interest rates, maturity dates, optional redemption dates and premiums, if any, principal serial maturities, 

term bond maturity or maturities, with or without premium, denominations, interest payment dates, applicable 

discount or premium, whether to participate in the Oregon School Bond Guaranty Program or obtain insurance or 

some other form of guaranty or security for the payment of the Series 2019 Bonds, to obtain one or more ratings 

for the Series 2019 Bonds, and such other provisions as are deemed necessary and desirable for the sale and 

issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds and to determine if all, a portion of, or none of the Series 2005 Bonds and Series 

2011 Bonds are to be refunded. 

Section 2. Title and Execution of Series 2019 Bonds. The Series 2019 Bonds shall be entitled “Lebanon 

Community School District No. 9, Linn County, Oregon, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019”, or 

such other name designated by the Authorized Representative, and shall bear the manual or facsimile signature of 

the Chair of the Board of Directors of the District and the manual or facsimile signature of the 

Superintendent/Clerk.  The Series 2019 Bonds shall be initially issued in book-entry form as a single, typewritten 

Bond for each maturity and issued in the registered name of the nominee of The Depository Trust Company. The 

Series 2019 Bonds will be issued without certificates being made available to the Bond holders. 

Section 3. Book-Entry-Only System. Ownership of the Series 2019 Bonds shall be recorded through entries 

on the books of banks and broker-dealer participants and correspondents that are related to entries on The 

Depository Trust Company book-entry-only system. The Series 2019 Bonds shall be initially issued in the form 

of a separate single fully registered type-written Bond for each maturity of the Series 2019 Bonds (the “Global 

Certificates”). Each Global Certificate shall be registered in the name of Cede and Co. as nominee (the “Nominee”) 

of The Depository Trust Company (the “Depository”) as the “Registered Owner”, and such Global Certificates 

shall be lodged with the Depository until redemption or maturity of the Series 2019 Bond issue. The Paying Agent 

shall remit payment for the maturing principal and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds to the Registered Owner for 

distribution by the Nominee for the benefit of the Bond holder (the “Beneficial Owner” or “Record Owner”) by 

recorded entry on the books of the Depository participants and correspondents. While the Series 2019 Bonds are 

in book-entry-only form, the Series 2019 Bonds will be available in denominations of $5,000 or any integral 

multiple thereof. 

 

The District has filed with the Depository a Letter of Representation to induce the Depository to accept the 

Series 2019 Bonds as eligible for deposit at the Depository. The underwriter for the Series 2019 Bonds is 

authorized to provide the Depository with the Preliminary Official Statement, together with the completed 

Depository’s underwriting questionnaire. 

 

The execution and delivery of the Letter of Representations and the providing to the Depository of the 

Preliminary Official Statement and the underwriting questionnaire shall not in any way impose upon the District 

any obligation whatsoever with respect to persons having interests in the Series 2019 Bonds other than the 

Registered Owners of the Series 2019 Bonds as shown on the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent 

and Bond Registrar. The Paying Agent and Bond Registrar, in writing, shall accept the book-entry-only system 

and shall agree to take all action necessary to at all times comply with the Depository’s operational arrangements 

for the book-entry-only system. The Authorized Representative may take all other action to qualify the Series 2019 

Bonds for the Depository’s book-entry-only system. 

 

 
Page 15



RESOLUTION – PAGE 3 

In the event the Depository determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the Series 2019 

Bonds, or the District determines that the Depository shall no longer so act, then the District will discontinue the 

book-entry-only system with the Depository. If the District fails to identify another qualified securities depository 

to replace the Depository, the Series 2019 Bonds shall no longer be a book-entry-only issue but shall be registered 

in the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar in the name of the Registered Owner 

as appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar and thereafter in the name or names 

of the owners of the Series 2019 Bonds transferring or exchanging Series 2019 Bonds. 

 

With respect to Series 2019 Bonds registered in the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent and 

Bond Registrar in the name of the Nominee of the Depository, the District, and the Paying Agent and Bond 

Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any participant or correspondent of the Depository or to any 

Beneficial Owner on behalf of which such participants or correspondents act as agent for the Registered Owner 

with respect to: 

 

 (i) the accuracy of the records of the Depository, the Nominee or any participant or correspondent 

with respect to any ownership interest in the Series 2019 Bonds, 

  

 (ii) the delivery to any participant or correspondent or any other person, other than a Registered 

Owner as shown in the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar, of any notice with 

respect to the Series 2019 Bonds, including any notice of redemption, 

 

 (iii) the selection by the Depository of the beneficial interest in Series 2019 Bonds to be redeemed in 

the event the District redeems the Series 2019 Bonds in part, or 

 

 (iv) the payment to any participant, correspondent or any other person other than the Registered Owner 

of the Series 2019 Bonds as shown in the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar, 

of any amount with respect to principal or interest on the Series 2019 Bonds. Notwithstanding the book-entry-only 

system, the District may treat and consider the Registered Owner in whose name each Series 2019 Bond is 

registered in the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar as the Registered Owner 

and absolute owner of such Series 2019 Bond for the purpose of payment of principal and interest with respect to 

such Series 2019 Bond, or for the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such 

Series 2019 Bond, or for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Series 2019 Bond, or for all other 

purposes whatsoever. The District shall pay or cause to be paid all principal of and interest on the Series 2019 

Bonds only to or upon the order of the Registered Owner, as shown in the registration books maintained by the 

Paying Agent and Bond Registrar, or their representative attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such 

payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the District’s obligation with respect to payment 

thereof to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

 

Upon delivery by the Depository to the District and to the Registered Owner of a Series 2019 Bond of 

written notice to the effect that the Depository has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of the Nominee 

then the word “Nominee” in this Resolution shall refer to such new nominee of the Depository, and upon receipt 

of such notice, the District shall promptly deliver a copy thereof to the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. 

 

Section 4. Transfer of Series 2019 Bonds. If the book-entry system is not utilized, the Series 2019 Bonds 

will be issued in certificate form. Then the Series 2019 Bonds are transferable, or subject to exchange, for fully 

registered Series 2019 Bonds in the denomination of $5,000 each or integral multiples thereof by the registered 

owner thereof in person, or by the owner’s attorney, duly authorized in writing, at the office of the Bond Registrar. 

The Bond Registrar shall maintain a record of the names and addresses of the registered owners of the Series 2019 

Bonds. The records of the registered Bond ownership are not public records within the meaning of Oregon Revised 

Statutes 192.410(4). 

 

 
Page 16



RESOLUTION – PAGE 4 

All bonds issued upon transfer of or in exchange for Series 2019 Bonds shall be valid general obligation 

bonds of the District evidencing the same debt and shall be entitled to the same benefits as the Series 2019 Bonds 

surrendered for such exchange or transfer. All fees, expenses and charges of the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar 

shall be payable by the District. The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or exchange any Series 2019 

Bond after the close of business on record date of the month next preceding any interest payment date or transfer 

or exchange any Series 2019 Bond called or being called for redemption. 

 

Section 5. Sale of the Series 2019 Bonds. The Series 2019 Bonds may be sold by a private negotiated 

sale as determined by the Authorized Representative. The Authorized Representative shall determine the 

requirements for the sale of the Series 2019 Bonds, subject to the provisions of this Resolution that provide the 

most advantageous terms to the District. The Authorized Representative is authorized to negotiate and execute a 

bond purchase agreement for a negotiated sale setting forth the terms of the sale of the Series 2019 Bonds.  

 

Section 6. Principal Amount. The principal amount of the Series 2019 Bonds shall be in an amount 

sufficient to pay (a) the principal of and interest on the Series 2005 Bonds being refunded, (b) the principal of and 

interest on the Series 2011 Bonds being refunded, and (c) the costs of issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

 

Pursuant to ORS 294.338(4)(c), a supplemental budget is not required to expend proceeds of bonds issued 

during the current budget period to refund previously issued bonds and the District is authorized to appropriate the 

proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds to the refunding of the Series 2005 Bonds and Series 2011 Bonds being 

refunded. 

 

Section 7. Payment of Series 2019 Bonds. If the book-entry system is not utilized, the principal of the 

Series 2019 Bonds shall be payable upon presentation of the Series 2019 Bonds at maturity at the principal 

corporate trust office of the Paying Agent. Payment of each installment of interest due each year shall be made by 

check or draft of the Paying Agent mailed on each interest payment date to the registered owner thereof whose 

name and address appears on the registration books of the District maintained by the Paying Agent as of the close 

of business on the record date as determined by the Authorized Representative. 

 

Section 8. Form of Series 2019 Bonds. The Series 2019 Bonds shall be issued substantially in the form 

as approved by the Authorized Representative and Bond Counsel. 

 

Section 9. Security. The Series 2019 Bonds shall be a general obligation of the District.  The full faith 

and credit of the District is pledged to the owners of all the Series 2019 Bonds for the payment of the principal 

and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds when due.  The District shall levy annually, as provided by law, a direct ad 

valorem tax upon all of the taxable property within the District in sufficient amount, without limitation, to pay the 

principal of and interest on all the Series 2019 Bonds promptly as they become due and payable.  The District 

covenants with the owners of the Series 2019 Bonds to pledge such ad valorem taxes in sufficient amount to pay 

the principal of and interest on the Series 2019 Bonds as they respectively become due and payable. Pursuant to 

ORS 310.145, the District hereby classifies the tax levy described in this section to be taxes imposed to pay the 

principal and interest on exempt bonded indebtedness and such taxes are not subject to the limits of sections 11 or 

11b, Article XI of the Oregon Constitution.  The owners of the Series 2019 Bonds shall not have a lien or security 

interest on the property refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2019 Bonds.  The District may issue additional 

general obligation bonds on parity with the Series 2019 Bonds. 

 

Section 10. Escrow Deposit Agreement and Escrow Agent. The District shall enter into an Escrow 

Deposit Agreement for the establishment of an Escrow Deposit Fund to which shall be deposited sufficient 

proceeds from the Series 2019 Bonds to acquire government obligations to provide funds sufficient to pay the 

principal of and interest on the Series 2005 Bonds and Series 2011 Bonds which are being refunded. The 

Authorized Representative is authorized to designate an Escrow Agent to administer the Escrow Deposit Fund 

and to execute the Escrow Deposit Agreement for and on behalf of the District. 

 
Page 17



RESOLUTION – PAGE 5 

 

Section 11. Irrevocable Call and Redemption. The District does authorize the irrevocable call for 

redemption on June 15, 2021, the earliest redemption date, at par value the principal of the Series 2011 Bonds 

being refunded. The irrevocable call and redemption of the Series 2011 Bonds being refunded is subject to the 

sale and delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds and the deposit into the Escrow Deposit Fund sufficient proceeds of 

the Series 2019 Bonds to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2011 Bonds being refunded, or to acquire 

government obligations in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2011 Bonds being 

refunded. 

 

Section 12. Effect of Refunding. The District determines that, upon deposit into the Escrow Deposit 

Fund of money or government obligations in an amount calculated to be sufficient to pay the principal of and 

interest on the Series 2005 Bonds and Series 2011 Bonds being refunded, such deposit shall fully defease the 

Series 2005 Bonds and Series 2011 Bonds being refunded. 

 

Section 13. Advance Refunding Plan. The Board authorizes the preparation of an advance refunding 

plan and its submission to the State Treasurer for approval pursuant to ORS 287A.370. 

 

Section 14. Appointment of Paying Agent and Bond Registrar. The Authorized Representative is 

authorized to appoint a Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds.  The 

Authorized Representative is authorized to negotiate and execute on behalf of the District the Paying Agent and 

Bond Registrar Agreement. In addition, the District requests and authorizes the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar 

to execute the Certificate of Authentication as of the date of delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds.  

 

Section 15. Appointment of Bond Counsel. The District hereby appoints the law firm of Mersereau 

Shannon LLP of Portland, Oregon as Bond Counsel for the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

 

Section 16. Appointment of Underwriter. Piper Jaffray & Co. is appointed as the Underwriter in 

connection with the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

 

Section 17.  Appointment of Independent Registered Municipal Advisor. The Authorized 

Representative District is authorized to appoint an Independent Registered Municipal Advisor to the District for 

the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds.  

 

Section 18. Appointment of Verification Agent. The Authorized Representative is authorized to appoint 

a verification agent to confirm that the funding the Escrow Deposit Fund is sufficient to pay when due the principal 

and interest on the Series 2005 Bonds and Series 2011 Bonds which are being refunded to the redemption date or 

the final maturity, as the case may be. 

 

Section 19. Appointment of Bidding Agent.  The Authorized Representative is authorized to appoint 

a bidding agent for the District in the event the government obligations are to be purchased in the open market. 

 

Section 20.  Printing Series 2019 Bonds. If the Series 2019 Bonds are not in book-entry form, then 

the Authorized Representative is authorized to contract for the printing of the Series 2019 Bonds. The 

Authorized Representative may provide for the printing of, in addition to the original issue of Series 2019 

Bonds, if any, additional bonds to be printed in blank form as to registration and to be designated by appropriate 

number for the Bond Registrar for delivery to the registered owner upon transfer or exchange of Series 2019 

Bonds. The additional bonds shall bear the dated date of the Series 2019 Bonds, shall be signed by the manual 

or facsimile signature of the Chair and shall be attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the 

Superintendent/Clerk and the Paying Agent and Bond Registrar shall manually sign the Certificate of 

Authentication as of the date of delivery or transfer of the Series 2019 Bonds. 

 
Page 18



 

 

RESOLUTION - PAGE 6  

 

 Section 21. Conditional Redemption. Any notice of optional redemption may state that the optional 

redemption is conditional upon receipt by the Bond Registrar of moneys sufficient to pay the redemption price 

of such bonds or upon the satisfaction of any other condition, and/or that such notice may be rescinded upon 

the occurrence of any other event, and any conditional notice so given may be rescinded at any time before 

payment of such redemption price if any such condition so specified is not satisfied or if any such other event 

occurs. Notice of such rescission or of the failure of any such condition shall be given by the Bond Registrar 

to the Registered Owner as promptly as practicable upon the failure of such condition or the occurrence of 

such other event. 

 

Section 22.  Defeasance.  The District may defease the Series 2019 Bonds by setting aside, with a 

duly appointed escrow agent, in a special escrow account irrevocably pledged to the payment of the Series 

2019 Bonds to be defeased, cash or direct obligations of the United States in an amount which, in the opinion 

of an independent certified public accountant, is sufficient without reinvestment to pay all principal and interest 

on the defeased Series 2019 Bonds until their maturity date or any earlier redemption date.  Series 2019 Bonds 

which have been defeased pursuant to this paragraph shall be deemed paid and no longer outstanding, and 

shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under this resolution except the right to receive payment 

from such special escrow account. 

 

Section 23. Contract with Registered Owners of Series 2019 Bonds. In consideration of the 

purchase and acceptance of the Series 2019 Bonds, the provisions of this Resolution and the Series 2019 Bonds 

shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the District and the Registered Owners of the 

Series 2019 Bonds. The covenants and agreements to be performed by or on behalf of the District shall be for 

the equal benefit, protection and security of the Registered Owners of any and all Series 2019 Bonds, all of 

which shall be of equal rank without preference, priority, or distinction among the Series 2019 Bonds. 

 

Section 24. Continuing Disclosure. The District covenants and agrees to comply with and carry out 

all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be entered into in connections with the Series 

2019 Bonds. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution, failure by the District to comply with the 

Continuing Disclosure Agreement will not constitute an event of default; however, any Registered Owner may 

take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by 

court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under this Section and the Continuing 

Disclosure Certificate.  

 

Section 25. Preliminary and Final Official Statement. The District shall prepare or cause to be 

prepared a preliminary official statement for the Series 2019 Bonds which shall be available for distribution 

to prospective purchasers of the Series 2019 Bonds. The Authorized Representative is authorized to deem such 

preliminary official statement final pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. In 

addition, the District shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, a final official statement for delivery to the 

purchasers of the Series 2019 Bonds no later than the seventh (7th) business day after the sale of the Series 

2019 Bonds. After determining that the final official statement does not contain any untrue statement of a 

material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements contained in the official 

statement not misleading in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, the Authorized 

Representative is authorized to certify the accuracy of the official statement on behalf of the District. 

 

  

 
Page 19



 

 

RESOLUTION - PAGE 7  

Section 26. Closing of the Sale and Delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds. The Authorized 

Representative is authorized to determine and execute all the documents and perform any and all other things 

or acts necessary for the sale and delivery of the Series 2019 Bonds and the refunding and redemption of the 

Series 2005 Bonds and Series 2011 Bonds being refunded as herein authorized. Such acts of the Authorized 

Representative are for and on behalf of and are authorized by the Board of Directors of the District. 

 

Section 27.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect on the date of its adoption. 

 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Lebanon Community School District No. 9, Linn County, 

Oregon, this12th day of September, 2019. 

 

     LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 9 

     LINN COUNTY, OREGON 

 

 

     By        

      Chair 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By       

 Superintendent/Clerk 

 
Page 20



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 1

SUMMARY OF REFUNDING RESULTS

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Dated Date 10/24/2019
Delivery Date 10/24/2019
Arbitrage yield 2.094177%
Escrow yield 1.664114%
Value of Negative Arbitrage 126,636.42

Bond Par Amount 19,150,000.00
True Interest Cost 2.217654%
Net Interest Cost 2.204886%
Average Coupon 2.091219%
Average Life 6.158

Par amount of refunded bonds 17,755,000.00
Average coupon of refunded bonds 4.694662%
Average life of refunded bonds 6.577

PV of prior debt to 10/24/2019 @ 2.094177% 20,852,889.17
Net PV Savings 1,714,004.82
Percentage savings of refunding proceeds 8.950417%

 
Page 21



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 2

SAVINGS

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Present Value
Prior Refunding Annual to 10/24/2019

Date Debt Service Debt Service Savings Savings @  2.0941766%

12/15/2019 417,862.50 55,147.14 362,715.36 ‐ 361,646.45
06/15/2020 417,862.50 779,636.98 ‐361,774.48 940.88 ‐356,970.54
12/15/2020 417,862.50 189,421.70 228,440.80 ‐ 223,071.62
06/15/2021 417,862.50 454,421.70 ‐36,559.20 191,881.60 ‐35,329.99
12/15/2021 417,862.50 186,992.98 230,869.52 ‐ 220,795.21
06/15/2022 1,737,862.50 1,776,992.98 ‐39,130.48 191,739.04 ‐37,035.18
12/15/2022 384,862.50 172,054.93 212,807.57 ‐ 199,325.34
06/15/2023 1,889,862.50 1,912,054.93 ‐22,192.43 190,615.14 ‐20,571.05
12/15/2023 347,237.50 155,577.13 191,660.37 ‐ 175,816.71
06/15/2024 3,317,237.50 3,315,577.13 1,660.37 193,320.74 1,507.33
12/15/2024 277,987.50 124,861.93 153,125.57 ‐ 137,571.33
06/15/2025 3,332,987.50 3,294,861.93 38,125.57 191,251.14 33,897.90
12/15/2025 209,250.00 93,288.73 115,961.27 ‐ 102,034.16
06/15/2026 2,044,250.00 1,968,288.73 75,961.27 191,922.54 66,145.61
12/15/2026 166,815.63 74,144.98 92,670.65 ‐ 79,859.62
06/15/2027 1,921,815.63 1,819,144.98 102,670.65 195,341.30 87,560.35
12/15/2027 126,231.25 55,970.80 70,260.45 ‐ 59,299.13
06/15/2028 1,926,231.25 1,805,970.80 120,260.45 190,520.90 100,446.87
12/15/2028 83,481.25 37,307.05 46,174.20 ‐ 38,167.10
06/15/2029 1,858,481.25 1,712,307.05 146,174.20 192,348.40 119,573.99
12/15/2029 41,325.00 18,605.68 22,719.32 ‐ 18,392.36
06/15/2030 1,781,325.00 1,613,605.68 167,719.32 190,438.64 134,369.74

23,536,556.26 21,616,235.94 1,920,320.32 1,920,320.32 1,709,574.04

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 1,709,574.04
Plus: Refunding funds on hand 4,430.78

Net PV Savings 1,714,004.82

 
Page 22



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 3

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Dated Date 10/24/2019
Delivery Date 10/24/2019

Sources:

Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 19,150,000.00

19,150,000.00

Uses:

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 0.35
SLGS Purchases 18,925,469.00

18,925,469.35

Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 79,365.00
Underwriter's Discount 134,050.00
Oregon School Bond Guaranty 6,684.87

220,099.87

Other Uses of Funds:
Additional Proceeds 4,430.78

19,150,000.00

 
Page 23



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 4

BOND PRICING

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price

Bond Component:
06/15/2020 585,000 1.783% 1.783% 100.000
06/15/2021 265,000 1.833% 1.833% 100.000
06/15/2022 1,590,000 1.879% 1.879% 100.000
06/15/2023 1,740,000 1.894% 1.894% 100.000
06/15/2024 3,160,000 1.944% 1.944% 100.000
06/15/2025 3,170,000 1.992% 1.992% 100.000
06/15/2026 1,875,000 2.042% 2.042% 100.000
06/15/2027 1,745,000 2.083% 2.083% 100.000
06/15/2028 1,750,000 2.133% 2.133% 100.000
06/15/2029 1,675,000 2.233% 2.233% 100.000
06/15/2030 1,595,000 2.333% 2.333% 100.000

19,150,000

Dated Date 10/24/2019
Delivery Date 10/24/2019
First Coupon 12/15/2019

Par Amount 19,150,000.00
Original Issue Discount ‐

Production 19,150,000.00 100.000000%
Underwriter's Discount ‐134,050.00 ‐0.700000%

Purchase Price 19,015,950.00 99.300000%
Accrued Interest ‐

Net Proceeds 19,015,950.00

 
Page 24



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 5

AGGREGATE DEBT SERVICE

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Proposed
Taxable Proposed
Advance Taxable

Refunding of Advance
2011 GO Refunding of Unrefunded Unrefunded

Bonds 2011 GO Bonds Bonds Bonds Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate Annual
Date Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Debt Service Aggregate D/S

12/15/2019 ‐ 55,147.14 ‐ 54,862.50 ‐ 110,009.64 110,009.64 ‐
06/15/2020 585,000 194,636.98 1,285,000 54,862.50 1,870,000 249,499.48 2,119,499.48 2,229,509.12
12/15/2020 ‐ 189,421.70 ‐ 22,737.50 ‐ 212,159.20 212,159.20 ‐
06/15/2021 265,000 189,421.70 1,240,000 22,737.50 1,505,000 212,159.20 1,717,159.20 1,929,318.40
12/15/2021 ‐ 186,992.98 ‐ ‐ ‐ 186,992.98 186,992.98 ‐
06/15/2022 1,590,000 186,992.98 ‐ ‐ 1,590,000 186,992.98 1,776,992.98 1,963,985.96
12/15/2022 ‐ 172,054.93 ‐ ‐ ‐ 172,054.93 172,054.93 ‐
06/15/2023 1,740,000 172,054.93 ‐ ‐ 1,740,000 172,054.93 1,912,054.93 2,084,109.86
12/15/2023 ‐ 155,577.13 ‐ ‐ ‐ 155,577.13 155,577.13 ‐
06/15/2024 3,160,000 155,577.13 ‐ ‐ 3,160,000 155,577.13 3,315,577.13 3,471,154.26
12/15/2024 ‐ 124,861.93 ‐ ‐ ‐ 124,861.93 124,861.93 ‐
06/15/2025 3,170,000 124,861.93 ‐ ‐ 3,170,000 124,861.93 3,294,861.93 3,419,723.86
12/15/2025 ‐ 93,288.73 ‐ ‐ ‐ 93,288.73 93,288.73 ‐
06/15/2026 1,875,000 93,288.73 ‐ ‐ 1,875,000 93,288.73 1,968,288.73 2,061,577.46
12/15/2026 ‐ 74,144.98 ‐ ‐ ‐ 74,144.98 74,144.98 ‐
06/15/2027 1,745,000 74,144.98 ‐ ‐ 1,745,000 74,144.98 1,819,144.98 1,893,289.96
12/15/2027 ‐ 55,970.80 ‐ ‐ ‐ 55,970.80 55,970.80 ‐
06/15/2028 1,750,000 55,970.80 ‐ ‐ 1,750,000 55,970.80 1,805,970.80 1,861,941.60
12/15/2028 ‐ 37,307.05 ‐ ‐ ‐ 37,307.05 37,307.05 ‐
06/15/2029 1,675,000 37,307.05 ‐ ‐ 1,675,000 37,307.05 1,712,307.05 1,749,614.10
12/15/2029 ‐ 18,605.68 ‐ ‐ ‐ 18,605.68 18,605.68 ‐
06/15/2030 1,595,000 18,605.68 ‐ ‐ 1,595,000 18,605.68 1,613,605.68 1,632,211.36

19,150,000 2,466,235.94 2,525,000 155,200.00 21,675,000 2,621,435.94 24,296,435.94 24,296,435.94

 
Page 25



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 6

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Current Refunding of 2001 GO Refunding Bonds (Level Levy), 11_GO_R:
BOND 06/15/2022 5.000% 1,320,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000

06/15/2023 5.000% 1,505,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000
06/15/2024 5.000% 1,970,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000
06/15/2024 4.000% 1,000,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000
06/15/2025 4.500% 3,055,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000
06/15/2026 4.625% 1,835,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000
06/15/2027 4.625% 1,755,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000
06/15/2028 4.750% 1,800,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000
06/15/2029 4.750% 1,775,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000
06/15/2030 4.750% 1,740,000.00 06/15/2021 100.000

17,755,000.00

 
Page 26



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 7

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Dated Date 10/24/2019
Delivery Date 10/24/2019

Period Principal
Ending Interest Redeemed Total

12/15/2019 417,862.50 ‐ 417,862.50
06/15/2020 417,862.50 ‐ 417,862.50
12/15/2020 417,862.50 ‐ 417,862.50
06/15/2021 417,862.50 17,755,000.00 18,172,862.50

1,671,450.00 17,755,000.00 19,426,450.00

 
Page 27



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 8

ESCROW DESCRIPTIONS

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Type of Type of Maturity First Int Par Max
Security SLGS Date Pmt Date Amount Rate Rate

Oct 24, 2019:
SLGS Certificate 12/15/2019 12/15/2019 373,616 2.010% 2.010%
SLGS Certificate 06/15/2020 06/15/2020 262,681 1.910% 1.910%
SLGS Note 12/15/2020 12/15/2019 265,903 1.780% 1.780%
SLGS Note 06/15/2021 12/15/2019 18,023,269 1.660% 1.660%

18,925,469

SLGS Summary

SLGS Rates File 14AUG19
Total Certificates of Indebtedness 636,297.00
Total Notes 18,289,172.00

Total original SLGS 18,925,469.00

 
Page 28



Aug 14, 2019   5:16 pm  Prepared by Piper Jaffray ‐ LMM (LebanonSD:LEBANON‐R_11GO_T,R_11GO_T)   Page 9

MA RULE DISCLOSURE

Lebanon Community School District No. 9
Proposed Taxable Advance Refunding of 2011 GO Bonds

Current Market Rates (August 14, 2019)
Uniform Savings Structure

Piper Jaffray is providing the information contained herein for discussion purposes only in anticipation of being engaged to serve as 
underwriter or placement agent on a future transaction and not as a financial advisor or municipal advisor. In providing the 
information contained herein, Piper Jaffray is not recommending an action to you and the information provided herein is not 
intended to be and should not be construed as a 'recommendation' or 'advice' within the meaning of Section 15B of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. Piper Jaffray is not acting as an advisor to you and does not owe a fiduciary duty pursuant to Section 15B of 
the Exchange Act or under any state law to you with respect to the information and material contained in this communication. As an 
underwriter or placement agent, Piper Jaffray's primary role is to purchase or arrange for the placement of securities with a view to 
distribution in an arm's‐length commercial transaction, is acting for its own interests and has financial and other interests that differ 
from your interests. You should discuss any information and material contained in this communication with any and all internal or 
external advisors and experts that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.

The information contained herein may include hypothetical interest rates or interest rate savings for a potential refunding. Interest 
rates used herein take into consideration conditions in today's market and other factual information such as credit rating, 
geographic location and market sector. Interest rates described herein should not be viewed as rates that Piper Jaffray expects to 
achieve for you should we be selected to act as your underwriter or placement agent. Information about interest rates and terms 
for SLGs is based on current publically available information and treasury or agency rates for open‐market escrows are based on 
current market interest rates for these types of credits and should not be seen as costs or rates that Piper Jaffray could achieve for 
you should we be selected to act as your underwriter or placement agent. More particularized information and analysis may be 
provided after you have engaged Piper Jaffray as an underwriter or placement agent or under certain other exceptions as describe 
in the Section 15B of the Exchange Act.

 
Page 29



 

Lebanon Community School District No. 9 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019 

Preliminary Schedule of Events; as of September 10, 2019 

Financing Team 
 Issuer: Lebanon Community School District No. 9 LCSD 
 Bond Counsel: Mersereau Shannon LLP BC 
 Underwriter: Piper Jaffray PJC 
 Registrar/Paying Agent: To be determined PA 
 Financial Advisor: To be determined FA 
 Escrow Verification Agent: Causey Demgen & Moore CDM 

  
September  October  November 

S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7    1 2 3 4 5       1 2 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14  6 7 8 9 10 11 12  3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21  13 14 15 16 17 18 19  10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28  20 21 22 23 24 25 26  17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
29 30       27 28 29 30 31    24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

 

  Due Date  Event  Parties  

 Mon. Sep. 9 Draft Authorizing Resolution circulated BC 
 Tue. Sep. 10 Circulate schedule and distribution list PJC 
 Wed., Sep. 11 Comments due on Authorizing Resolution Fin. Team 
  Authorizing Resolution to District for Board Packet BC 
 Thur., Sep. 12 Board Adopts Authorizing Resolution LCSD Board 
 Wed., Sep. 18 First draft Preliminary Official Statement (POS) circulated PJC 
  Continuing Disclosure Review circulated PJC 
 Fri., Sep. 20 MDAC 1 filed with Treasury PJC 
  District to apply for Oregon School Bond Guaranty and submit $200 fee LCSD 
 Wed., Oct. 2 Comments due on first draft POS Fin. Team 
 Thur., Oct. 3 Second draft POS and draft Purchase Agreement circulated PJC 
  First draft Continuing Disclosure Undertaking circulated BC 
  Audited financials & budget to rating agency PJC 
 Mon., Oct 14 Circulate Due Diligence Questionnaire and draft Rating Presentation PJC 
  District to receive qualification for Oregon School Bond Guaranty LCSD 
 Thur., Oct. 17 Comments due on second draft POS and draft Purchase Agreement Fin. Team 
 Fri., Oct. 18 Substantially complete draft POS and “Deemed Final” letter circulated PJC 
  Clean copy of draft POS to LCSD Board LCSD 
 Wk. of Oct. 21 Due diligence and Rating prep calls LCSD; PJC; BC 
  Rating Presentation circulated to rating agency PJC 
  Conference call with rating agency LCSD; PJC 
 Wed., Oct. 30 Final comments on POS due Fin. Team 
  End of Board review of POS LCSD Board 
  “Deemed Final” letter due to PJC LCSD 
  Receive rating PJC 
 Thur., Oct. 31 Posting and distribution of POS PJC 
 Fri., Nov. 8 Pre-pricing (time between 11 a.m. and 2 p.m. to be determined) LCSD; PJC 

 Mon., Nov. 11 Veteran’s Day (Market Holiday) 

 Tue., Nov. 12 Pricing (District staff to be available throughout the day) LCSD; PJC 
  Purchase Agreement signed; Receive Escrow verification LCSD; PJC; CDM 
 Wk. of Nov. 18 Draft closing documents circulated BC 
 Mon., Nov. 19 Final Official Statement posted; File MDAC 2 and Advance Refunding Plan PJC 
  Closing Memorandum circulated PJC 
 Mon., Nov. 25 Refunding Plan Approval from Treasury LCSD; PJC 
 Tue., Nov. 26 Closing Fin. Team 

 
Page 30



LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
August 8, 2019, 5:00 PM 

 
Santiam Travel Station 750 S. Third Street, Lebanon, OR 97355 

 
 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 

Meeting Agenda August 8, 2019                1  

  
 

The following individuals were present: 
 
Tom Oliver, Chair     Bo Yates, Superintendent 
Richard Borden, Member    Jennifer Meckley, Assistant Superintendent 
Mike Martin, Member     Kim Grousbeck, Director of Employee Relations 
Tammy Schilling, Member      
 
Nick Brooks, Member, was absent. 

 
The meeting minutes were recorded by Executive Secretary Ruth Hopkins. 
 
1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Tom Oliver called the meeting to order at 5:08 PM. 
 

2.   BOARD REORGANIZATION 
 
 A.  Action: Oaths of Office from Richard Borden and Tammy Schilling. 
  

 Richard Borden and Tammy Schilling took their oaths of office to serve their new four-year 
term. 

 
 B.  Action:  Election of Board Chair for 2019-2020 

 
Richard Borden made a motion to elect Tom Oliver as the Board Chair for 2019-2020.  Mike 
Martin seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously, and Tom Oliver abstained. 

 
 C.  Action:  Election of a Board Vice Chair for 2019-2020 
  

  Tammy Schilling made a motion to elect Nick Brooks as the Board Vice Chair for 2019-2020.   
Richard Borden seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.   

 
3.     AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
 

No members of the audience requested the opportunity to address the Board. 
 
4.    RESOLUTION 1920-1             
 
 Upon motion made by Martin, seconded by Borden, the Board voted unanimously to approve 

Resolution 1920-1 as presented.   

 
Page 31



Meeting Agenda August 8, 2019 2 

5.     MEMORANDUM FOR SALE OF CONSTRUCTION HOUSE 
 
 Yates shared that the sale of the construction house required board approval.  Martin asked if the 

program would be self-sustaining after the sale.  Yates said that we would be $100,000 to the 
good.  The program will not be self-sustaining this year, but it should be on the next house. 

 
 Upon motion made by Borden, seconded by Martin, the Board voted unanimously to approve the 

sale of the construction house.          
                        

 
6.     CONSENT AGENDA 
 

   A.  June 13, 2019 Meeting Minutes and June 26, 2019 Meeting Minutes and Policies for 
Second Reading    

 
  Upon motion made by Borden, duly seconded by Schilling, the Board voted unanimously to 

approve the June 13, 2019 Board Minutes and the June 26, 2019 Special Board Minutes and 
Policies JEC, JECB, JECF, IKF, LBE and IGDJ as presented. 
  

            B.   Hiring:   
    

Martin asked how attrition effected the number of new hires.  Meckley stated they were not all 
retirements; some were relocations.  Martin asked if the young teachers coming in were leaving 
or staying.  Meckley responded that often young teachers were connected to the medical school 
and did not stay more than three years.  Martin asked if the numbers were down from last year 
and Meckley responded they were.  She indicated that last year it was 40 to 45 for new hires.  She 
said there were currently five position open, a couple of which were on maternity leave. 
 
Upon motion made by Martin, duly seconded by Schilling, the Board voted unanimously to 
approve the hiring as presented.  
 

7. SECLUSION AND RESTRAINT REPORT 
 
Jan Sansom stated that it was an annual report that was required by ODE.  She mentioned that 
the district has done a good job in getting staff trained, and said to please note how many staff 
were included in the report. 

 
8.    DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

             
A. Operations 

 
Yates shared that the food service department has served over 12,000 meals this summer for 
kids in the community.  Transportation has trained three new drivers.  For facilities, the land 
lab project is very close to being completed.  He would like to hold a board meeting up 
there soon.  Also, the Ralston Academy is under construction.   
 
The custodial crew is working in Ralston Academy and will have some kids at each school to 
support custodial services and give them some work experience.  
 
He said that technology is flawless; doing a fantastic job. 

 
Page 32



Meeting Agenda August 8, 2019 3 

Schilling questioned the food service program and challenged Yates to try out the food.  She 
thought kids were skipping meals because of the food quality.  Yates indicated he would 
look into it.  He mentioned that the meals he was referring to were ones that were served 
out of the lunch bus as part of the summer meal program. 
 
Yates asked Tami Volz to give a report on student achievement. 
 
Tami Volz said she would have a formal report to share in September.  She said that the K-5 
summer school program concluded on August 1.  There were 38 staff members that 
participated, and 255 students that were served.  We are currently collecting feedback from 
a staff and parent survey.  We worked with a few community partners.  The Boys and Girls 
Club had some older kids that volunteered to work with the younger kids.  Keller Williams 
also offered a reading library where kids read books and turned in reading slips that were 
entered into a drawing for five grand prizes.   
 
Eugene Science Center, OMSI and Warner Bros. offered field trip experiences that offered 
kids the opportunity to learn things beyond the normal school subjects. 
 
For AVID, we had 34 teachers and administrators that participated in the AVID Summer 
Institute in San Diego, California.  Almost all of schools imbed the AVID strategies in their 
school at some level.  She asked the board if they would like to have a formal presentation 
on AVID, as she would be happy to bring them specific information. 
 
There will also be a Curriculum Academy this summer, which will start on August 19 and is 
targeted to our staff.  There will be over 100 teachers and instructional assistants that will be 
participating.  The focus will be on reading and math for K-12.  Then for language arts, there 
will be a Keynote Speaker, Barbara Steinberg, who will be presenting to on foundational 
reading skills.  There are also smaller groups for TAG and the counselors, who will be 
meeting together. 
 
No questions were asked.  Oliver said that he would like to hear more on both AVID and the 
Curriculum Academy.  He would like a formal report on AVID indicators.  Volz said we will 
have more information as there will be two AVID Showcases at Pioneer School this year. 
 

B. Human Resources  
 

Meckley shared that we have hired 23 certified staff and two temporary certified staff, two 
administrators and we have five open posts.   
 
She mentioned that all of the new teachers will participate in the Curriculum Academy.  We 
are also improving the teacher mentor program by adding instructional mentors, most of 
which are teachers who are retired or on a leave of absence or not teaching at the moment, 
and are available to give feedback to the new teachers.  

 
Schilling asked if we have a cross training program where a new teacher will observe a 
seasoned teacher for a few days.  Meckley said we did have that but it was not for a few 
days.  She said the district will do learning walks twice a year, which will be two half days a 
year.   
 
 

 

 
Page 33



Meeting Agenda August 8, 2019 4 

9.    COMMUNICATION  

A. Superintendent 
 
Yates shared that we have the opportunity to apply for a matching bond at the state level.  The 
ODE will match our bond up to about $4.5 million, so if we raise $4 million, the state will match 
$4 million and then we would have $8 million to spend on maintenance and upgrades.  We can 
apply for the bond every six years.  He mentioned that there are limited funds available, but that 
our demographics would allow us to have a full match and to even possibly have more. 
 
There was an ad hoc facility meeting on July 18th and they discussed the repairs that needed to 
be done.  Yates shared the report that came back regarding costs for facility replacement and 
repairs and it is attached to the minutes.   
 
Yates indicated that they would prioritize the needs at each school and then whatever was left 
over, it would be divided up based on square footage to maintain equity. 
 
A discussion was held around the report and the needs of the different facilities within our 
district. 
 
Oliver asked if we would be asking for a $6 million bond.  Yates said we were and the matching 
would bring us up to $10 million. 
 
Schilling asked for the detailed report.  Oliver said there was a report that the ad hoc committee 
was working on.  He also mentioned that there was not going to be significant changes to the 
buildings.  It would not change the look and the feel of the buildings.  It also does not take into 
consideration the enrollment increase in the district.   
 
Martin asked if it would be for the May election and Oliver indicated that May would be pushing 
it.   
 
Oliver mentioned that there was another piece regarding a construction excise tax and it would 
provide up to $1.50 a square foot, up to a certain amount.  He mentioned that some of the 
pieces that needed to be in place to apply for that tax, are also needed for the bond.   
 
There was a discussion that was held around construction excise tax and urban growth. 
 
Yates indicated it was closer to $4 million that would take care of the needs in the remodels, not 
the wants. 
 

 B.   Board 
  

Oliver shared that he and Yates had met with a publications firm that works with public entities.  
The purpose of the meeting was because of the district’s need for a strategic communication 
plan to communicate to parents and the community, and to gather feedback regarding the 
bond and about what the community is valuing and what the needs are in the buildings.   
 
After the last board meeting, they received a plan back from Loomis.  They would get the plan 
set up and going, then the district would take over.  The proposal from the firm is $4,700 a 
month for their services to build the plan and do the communication, which would be through 
the time the bond was out there.   So it would be approximately $60,000 in total. 

 
Page 34



Meeting Agenda August 8, 2019 5 

 
Martin said he felt we need to do that.  It would be like hiring an efficiency expert.   
 
Oliver indicated that we did not need a motion, just a consensus so that Yates had a direction of 
which firm to use. 
 
Schilling asked for a specific plan. 
 
Yates said that during the first round of parent teacher conferences, we will be doing goal 
settings with student and parents, doing surveys, and try to get an idea of how we can work 
with parents to support the kids.   
 
Consensus is for Yates to move forward and get a detailed service plan, with all of the costs 
involved. 
 

10.    AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
 
 No members of the audience requested the opportunity to address the Board. 

 
11.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Whereupon, there being no other business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 6:05 PM. 
 
 
 
Upcoming Board Meeting Dates: 
September 12, 2019 
October 10, 2019 
November 14, 2019 
 
 

 
 

___________________________________________ 
Tom Oliver, Board Chair 

 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
Bo Yates, Superintendent 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 35



 
Page 36



 
Page 37



OSCIM Bond Opportunity

 Lebanon Community Schools has the opportunity to apply for an Oregon School Capitol 
Improvement Matching Program grant (OSCIM). These grants are targeting school districts which 
typically have difficulty passing bonds in order to incentivize community support for passing school 
facility bonds. The maximum amount of the match would be approximately 4 million dollars. 

 Spring 2019, Facility evaluation Submit to ODE on September 1

 Summer 2019, Long Range Facility Plan Submit to ODE on September 1

 OSCIM Program Application Submit to ODE on September 15

 On the Ballot for approval May 2020 

 
Page 38



LCSD Needs Your Support

Our schools need a considerable amount of Maintenance and Repair

Maintenance Replacement
 Cascades $3,500,000 $22,000,000

 Green Acres $3,500,000 $22,000,000

 Riverview $80,000

 Pioneer $350,000

 Hamilton Creek $3,700,000 $22,000,000

 Lacomb $3,700,000 $18,000,000

 SevenOak $5,500,000 $35,500,000

 LHS $16,500,000 $103,500,000

 Total $37,500,000 $223,000,000 
Page 39



2019-20

LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOLS ORGANIZATION CHART

Board of Directors

Budget Committee

Superintendent

Secondary Principals Elementary Principals Operations

Maintenance/Custodian 
Supervisor

Custodian Supervisor

Facilities

Transportation Director Nutrition Director Technology Dept

Asst Superintendent

School Improvement 
Director

Alternative Education 
Director

Business Director HR Director

Welcome Center

Special Education 
Director

Adhoc Committees

 
Page 40



HR3/29/172/28/19│PH Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, or Cyberbullying 
Complaint Reporting Procedures – Staff  – GBNA-AR 

1-4 
 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: GBNA-AR 
Revised/Reviewed:  
 

Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, or Cyberbullying 
Complaint Reporting Procedures – Staff 

 
The following definitions and procedures shall be used for reporting, investigating, and resolving 
complaintsreports of hazing, harassment, intimidation, bullying, menacing, and acts of cyberbullying of 
staff or third parties. 
 
Definitions 
 
1. “Third parties” include, but are not limited to, coaches, school volunteers, parents, school visitors, 

service contractors, or others engaged in district business, such as employees of businesses or 
organizations participating in cooperative work programs with the district and others not directly 
subject to district control at interdistrict and intradistrict athletic competitions or other school events. 

2. “District” includes district facilities, district premises, and nondistrict property if the employee is at 
any district-sponsored, district-approved, or district-related activity or function, such as field trips, 
athletic events or where the employee is engaged in district business. 

3. “Hazing” includes, but is not limited to, any act that recklessly or intentionally endangers the mental 
health, physical health or safety of a student/staff member for the purpose of initiation or as a 
condition or precondition of attaining membership in, or affiliation with, any district-sponsored work 
activity, work group or work assignment, grade level attainment, (i.e., personal servitude, sexual 
stimulation/sexual assault, forced consumption of any drink, alcoholic beverage, drug or controlled 
substance, forced exposure to the elements, forced prolonged exclusion from social contact, sleep 
deprivation or any other forced activity that could adversely affect the mental or physical health or 
safety of a student/staff); requires, encourages, authorizes or permits another to be subject to wearing 
or carrying any obscene or physically burdensome article; assignment of pranks to be performed or 
other such activities intended to degrade or humiliate regardless of the person’s willingness to 
participate. 

4. “Harassment” includes, but is not limited to, any act which subjects an individual or group to 
unwanted, abusive behavior of a nonverbal, verbal, written or physical nature is unwelcome conduct 
that is based on race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy), sexual orientation1, national origin, 
age (40 or older), disability or genetic information. Harassment becomes unlawful when 1) enduring 
the offensive conduct becomes a condition of continued employment, or 2) the conduct is severe or 
pervasive enough to create a work environment that a reasonable person would consider 
intimidating, hostile, or abusive.  

5. “Intimidation” includes, but is not limited to, any threat or act intended to tamper, substantially 
damage or interfere with another’s property, cause substantial inconvenience, subject another to 

                                                 
1 “Sexual orientation” means an individual’s actual or perceived heterosexuality, homosexuality, bisexuality or gender identity, 
regardless of whether the individual’s gender identity, appearance, expression or behavior differs from that traditionally 
associated with the individual’s sex at birth. 

 
Page 41



HR3/29/172/28/19│PH Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, or Cyberbullying 
Complaint Reporting Procedures – Staff  – GBNA-AR 

2-4 
 

offensive physical contact or inflict serious physical injury on the perception of the other’s race, 
color, religion, national origin, disability, or sexual orientation. 

6. “Bullying” is a pattern of repeated mistreatment that harms, intimidates, undermines, offends, 
degrades, or humiliates an employee. 

7. “Cyberbullying” means the use of any electronic communication device to [convey a message in any 
form (e.g., text, image, audio, or video) that intimidates, harasses, or otherwise harms, insults, or 
humiliates another in a deliberate, repeated or hostile and unwanted manner under a person’s true or 
false identity. In addition, any communication of this form which substantially disrupts or prevents a 
safe and positive working environment may also be considered cyberbullying.] [harass, intimidate, 
or bully.] Staff will refrain from using personal electronic devices or district equipment to harass or 
stalk another person or people. 

8. “Menacing” includes, but is not limited to, any act intended to place a district employee, student, or 
third party in fear of imminent serious physical injury. 

Retaliation/False Charges 
 
Retaliation against any person who reports, is thought to have reported, files a complaint or otherwise 
participates in an investigation or inquiry is prohibited. Such retaliation shall be considered a serious 
violation of Board policy and independent of whether a complaint is substantiated. False charges shall also 
be regarded as a serious offense and will result in disciplinary action or other appropriate sanctions. 
 
Complaint Reporting Procedures 
 
The [principals and the ] [superintendent] [have] [has] responsibility for investigations concerning reports 
of hazing, harassment, intimidation, bullying, menacing, and acts of or cyberbullying of staff or third 
parties. The investigator(s) shall be a neutral party having had no involvement in the complaint report 
presented. 
 
Any employee or third party who has knowledge of conduct in violation of Board policy JFCF - [Hazing,] 
Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Cyberbullying, Teen Dating Violence, or Domestic 
Violence – Student shall immediately report his/her concerns to the designated district official. 
 
Any employee or third party who has knowledge of conduct in violation of Board policy GBNA – Hazing, 
Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, or Cyberbullying – Staff and this administrative regulation 
or feels he/she hasthey have been hazed, harassed, intimidated, bullied, cyberbullied, or menaced in 
violation of Board policy or this administrative regulation, [shall] [is encouraged to] immediately report 
his/her concerns to the designated district official. 
 
Complaints All reports and information will be promptly investigated in accordance with the following 
procedures: 
 
Step 1 Any reports or information on acts of hazing, harassment, intimidation, bullying, menacing, or 

acts of cyberbullying information (e.g., complaints, rumors, etc.) shall be presented to the 
[principal or superintendent]. Complaints Reports against the principal shall be filed with the 
superintendent. Information may be presented anonymously. Complaints Reports against the 

 
Page 42



HR3/29/172/28/19│PH Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, or Cyberbullying 
Complaint Reporting Procedures – Staff  – GBNA-AR 

3-4 
 

superintendent shall be filed with the Board chair. All such information will be reduced to 
writing and will include the specific nature of the offense and corresponding dates. 

 
Step 2 The district official receiving the complaint report shall promptly investigate. Parents will be 

notified of the nature of any complaint report involving their student. The district official will 
arrange such meetings as may be necessary with all concerned parties within [five] working 
days after receipt of the information or complaintreport. The parties will have an opportunity 
to submit evidence and a list of witnesses. All findings related to the complaint report will be 
reduced to writing. The district official(s) conducting the investigation shall notify the 
complainant person making the report within [10] working days of receipt of the information 
or report, and parents as appropriate, [in writing,] when the investigation is concluded and a 
decision regarding disciplinary action, as warranted, is determined. 

 
 [A copy of the notification letter or the date and details of notification to the 

complainantperson making the report, together with any other documentation related to the 
incident, including disciplinary action taken or recommended, shall be forwarded to the 
superintendent.] 

 
Step 3 If the complainant person making the report is not satisfied with the decision at Step 2, 

he/shethey may submit a written appeal to the superintendent or designee. Such appeal must 
be filed within [10] working days after receipt of the Step 2 decision. The superintendent or 
designee will arrange such meetings with the complainantperson making the report and other 
affected parties as deemed necessary to discuss the appeal. The superintendent or designee 
shall provide a written decision to the complainant’s appeal within [20] working days. 

 
Step 4 If a complainant is not satisfied with the Step 3 decision and wishes to pursue the concern, the 

complainant may appeal the decision to the Board within five working days of receiving the 
superintendent’s decision. 
 
All Board members will be notified of the appeal to the Board.  The Board chair will 
determine whether the Board will hear the appeal, and will notify the Board members and 
complainant of his/her decision. However, if a member of the Board disagrees with the Chair's 
decision, the Board member can refer the decision to a vote of the full Board.  In that case, the 
full Board will vote on whether to consider the complaint. 
 
If the Board chooses not to hear the complaint, the superintendent’s decision is final. 
 
If the Board decides to hear an appeal, the Board shall review the complaint during a properly-
noticed Board meeting.  The Board at its discretion may assign the investigation to a third 
party.  The determination to assign the investigation to a third party shall be made by the 
Board Chair. However, if a member of the Board disagrees with the Chair's decision, the 
Board member can refer the decision to a vote of the full Board.  The Board may also, in its 
discretion, offer the complainant and other involved parties an opportunity to appear before 
the Board, or may resolve the complaint based on the written record.  The Board may review 
the matter in executive session if permitted under the Oregon Public Meetings Law.   
 
The complainant shall be informed in writing of the Board’s decision within 10 working days.  
The Board’s decision will address each allegation in the complaint and contain reasons for the 
Board’s decision. The Board’s decision will be final. 

 
Page 43



HR3/29/172/28/19│PH Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, or Cyberbullying 
Complaint Reporting Procedures – Staff  – GBNA-AR 

4-4 
 

 
The timelines described in this section may be extended upon written agreement by the 
complainant and the district. 
 
The complaint procedure set out above will not be longer than 90 working days from the filing 
date of the Step 2 complaint with the administrator or supervisor to the final decision, unless 
extended by mutual written agreement. 

 
 
Reports against the superintendent should be referred to the Board chair on behalf of the Board. The Board 
chair shall present the report to the Board. If the Board decides an investigation is warranted, the Board 
may refer the investigation to a third party. When the investigation is complete, the results will be 
presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the investigation, the Board shall decide, within [20] 
days, in open session what action, if any, is warranted. 
 
Reports against the Board as a whole or against an individual Board member should be made to the Board 
chair on behalf of the Board. The Board chair shall present the report to the Board. If the Board decides an 
investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third party. When the investigation is 
complete, the results will be presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the investigation, the 
Board shall decide, within [20] days, in open session what action, if any, is warranted. 
 
Reports against the Board chair may be made directly to the [district counsel] [Board chair] on behalf of 
the Board. The [district counsel] [Board vice chair] shall present the report to the Board. If the Board 
decides an investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third party. When the 
investigation is complete, the results will be presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the 
investigation, the Board shall decide, within [20] days, in open session what action, if any, is warranted. 
 
Timelines may be extended upon written agreement between both parties. This also applies to reports filed 
against the superintendent or any Board member. 
 
Direct complaints of discriminatory harassment related to employment may be filed with the Oregon 
Bureau of Labor and Industries, Civil Rights Division, or the U.S. Department of Labor, Equal 
Employment Opportunities Commission. 
 
Documentation related to the incident may be maintained as a part of the employee’s personnel file. 
[Additionally, a copy of all reported acts of hazing, harassment, intimidation, bullying, menacing, or acts 
of cyberbullying complaints and documentation will be maintained as a confidential file in the district 
office.] 
 
Complaints against the Board as a whole or against an individual Board member should be made to the 
Board chair on behalf of the Board. 
 
Complaints against the Board chair may be made directly to the [district counsel] [Board vice chair] on 
behalf of the Board. 

 
Page 44



HR6/12/142/28/19│PH Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing,  
or Cyberbullying – Staff – GBNA 

1-2 
 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: GBNA 
Adopted:  
 

Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing, or Cyberbullying – Staff 
 
The Board is committed to providing a positive and productive learning and working environment.  
 
Hazing, harassment, intimidation, bullying, menacing, and acts of cyberbullying of staff, students or third 
parties by staff, students, or third parties is strictly prohibited and shall not be tolerated in the district.  
 
Retaliation against the victim, any person who reports, is thought to have reported, files a complaint, or 
otherwise participates in an investigation or inquiry is also strictly prohibited. Such retaliation shall be 
considered a serious violation of Board policy and independent of whether a report or complaint is 
substantiated. False charges shall also be regarded as a serious offense and will result in disciplinary action 
or other appropriate sanctions. 
 
Staff whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to consequences and 
appropriate remedial action which may include discipline, up to and including dismissal. Third parties 
whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as 
determined and imposed by the superintendent or the Board. Students whose behavior is found to be in 
violation of this policy will be subject to consequences and appropriate remedial action which may include 
discipline, up to and including expulsion. 
 
Individuals may also be referred to law enforcement officials. Licensed staff will may be reported to 
Teacher Standards and Practices Commission, as provided by if required by Oregon Administrative Rule 
(OAR) 584-020-0041. 
 
The superintendent is directed to develop administrative regulations to implement this policy. Regulations 
shall include descriptions of prohibited conduct, reporting and investigative procedures, and provisions to 
ensure [annual] notice of this policy is provided to students, staff, and third parties. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
ORS 163.190 
ORS 163.197 
ORS 166.065 
ORS 166.155 - 166.165 
ORS 174.100 
ORS 332.072 

ORS 332.107 
ORS 339.250 
ORS 659A.006 
ORS 659A.029 
ORS 659A.030 
ORS 659A.103 - 659A.143 

ORS 659A.199 - 659A.224 
OAR 839-003-0000 
OAR 839-005-0021 
OAR 839-005-0030

 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2012). 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et. Seq. (2012). 
Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621-634 (2012); 29 C.F.R. Part 1626 (2018) 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213 (2012); 29 C.F.R. Part 1630 (2018); 28 C.F.R. Part 35 
(2018). 

 
Page 45

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-163
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-163
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-166
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-166
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-659a
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-839
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-839
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-839


HR6/12/142/28/19│PH Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Menacing,  
or Cyberbullying – Staff – GBNA 

2-2 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12133 (2012). 
Bartsch v. Elkton School District, FDA-13-011 (March 27, 2014). 
OREGON BUREAU OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, Workplace Bullying (visited Feb. 26, 2019), 
<https://www.oregon.gov/boli/docs/WorkplaceBullyingPoster-2018.pdf>. 

 
Page 46



R4/17/172/28/19│PH  [Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, 
Cyberbullying, and or Teen Dating Violence Complaint Reporting 

Procedures – Student – JFCF-AR 
1-3 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: JFCF-AR 
Revised/Reviewed:  
 
 [Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, Cyberbullying, 

and or Teen Dating Violence Complaint Reporting Procedures – Student 
 (Version 2) 

 
The [employee position title(s)1] [has] [have] responsibility for investigations concerning acts of [ hazing,] 
harassment, intimidation or bullying,[ menacing,] acts of cyberbullying, and incidents of teen dating 
violence. The investigator(s) shall be a neutral party having had no involvement in the complaint report 
presented. 
 
All complaints reports will be investigated in accordance with the following procedures: 
 
Step 1 Any reports or information on acts of [hazing, ]harassment, intimidation or bullying, 

[menacing,] acts of cyberbullying, and or incidents of teen dating violence information (e.g., 
complaints, rumors, etc.) shall be presented to the [employee position title]. Complaints 
Reports against the principal shall be filed with the superintendent. Complaints Reports against 
the superintendent shall be filed with the Board chair. All such information will be reduced to 
writing and will include the specific nature of the offense and corresponding dates. 

 
Step 2 The district official [employee position title] receiving the complaint report shall promptly 

investigate. Parents will be notified of the nature of any complaint report involving their 
student. The district official [employee position title] will arrange such meetings as may be 
necessary with all concerned parties within [five] working days after receipt of the information 
or complaint report. The parties will have an opportunity to submit evidence and a list of 
witnesses. All findings related to the complaint report will be reduced to writing. The district 
official(s) [employee position title] conducting the investigation shall notify the complainant 
person making the report within [210] working days of receipt of the information or report, and 
parents as appropriate, [in writing,] when the investigation is concluded and a decision 
regarding disciplinary action, as warranted, is determined. 

 
[A copy of the notification letter or the date and details of notification to the complainant 
person making the report, together with any other documentation related to the incident, 
including disciplinary action taken or recommended, shall be forwarded to the superintendent.] 

 
Step 3 If the complainant person making the report is not satisfied with the decision at Step 2, he/she 

they may submit a written appeal to the superintendent or designee. Such appeal must be filed 
within [210] working days after receipt of the Step 2 decision. The superintendent or designee 
will arrange such meetings with the complainant person making the report and other affected 

                                                 
1 Required by ORS 339.356(2)(g). Other bracketed language regarding hazing and menacing exceeds the requirements of ORS 
339.356 and is under Board authority ORS 332.107. 

 

 
Page 47



R4/17/172/28/19│PH  [Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, 
Cyberbullying, and or Teen Dating Violence Complaint Reporting 

Procedures – Student – JFCF-AR 
2-3 

 

parties as deemed necessary to discuss the appeal. The superintendent or designee shall provide 
a written decision to the complainant’s appeal within [210] working days. 

[Step 4 If a complainant is not satisfied with the Step 3 decision and wishes to pursue the concern, the 
complainant may appeal the decision to the Board within five working days of receiving the 
superintendent’s decision. 
 
All Board members will be notified of the appeal to the Board.  The Board chair will determine 
whether the Board will hear the appeal, and will notify the Board members and complainant of 
his/her decision. However, if a member of the Board disagrees with the Chair's decision, the 
Board member can refer the decision to a vote of the full Board.  In that case, the full Board 
will vote on whether to consider the complaint. 
 
If the Board chooses not to hear the complaint, the superintendent’s decision is final. 
 
If the Board decides to hear an appeal, the Board shall review the complaint during a properly-
noticed Board meeting.  The Board at its discretion may assign the investigation to a third 
party.  The determination to assign the investigation to a third party shall be made by the Board 
Chair. However, if a member of the Board disagrees with the Chair's decision, the Board 
member can refer the decision to a vote of the full Board.  The Board may also, in its 
discretion, offer the complainant and other involved parties an opportunity to appear before the 
Board, or may resolve the complaint based on the written record.  The Board may review the 
matter in executive session if permitted under the Oregon Public Meetings Law.   
 
The complainant shall be informed in writing of the Board’s decision within 10 working days.  
The Board’s decision will address each allegation in the complaint and contain reasons for the 
Board’s decision. The Board’s decision will be final. 
 
The timelines described in this section may be extended upon written agreement by the 
complainant and the district. 
 
The complaint procedure set out above will not be longer than 90 working days from the filing 
date of the Step 2 complaint with the administrator or supervisor to the final decision, unless 
extended by mutual written agreement. 

If the complainant person making the report is not satisfied with the decision at Step 3, a written appeal 
may be filed with the Board. Such appeal must be filed within [10] working days after receipt 
of the Step 3 decision. The Board shall, within [20] working days, conduct a hearing at which 
time the complainant person making the report shall be given an opportunity to present the 
complaintreport. The Board shall provide a written decision to the complainant person making 
the report within [10] working days following completion of the hearing.] 

 
Complaints Reports against the superintendent should be referred to the Board chair on behalf of the 
Board. The Board chair shall present the complaint report to the Board. If the Board decides an 
investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third party. When the investigation is 
complete, the results will be presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the investigation, the 
Board shall decide, within [20] days, in open session what action, if any, is warranted. 
 

 
Page 48



R4/17/172/28/19│PH  [Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, 
Cyberbullying, and or Teen Dating Violence Complaint Reporting 

Procedures – Student – JFCF-AR 
3-3 

 

Reports against the Board as a whole or against an individual Board member should be made to the Board 
chair on behalf of the Board. The Board chair shall present the report to the Board. If the Board decides an 
investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third party. When the investigation is 
complete, the results will be presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the investigation, the 
Board shall decide, within [20] days, in open session what action, if any, is warranted. 
 
Reports against the Board chair may be made directly to the [district counsel] [Board chair] on behalf of 
the Board. The [district counsel] [Board vice chair] shall present the report to the Board. If the Board 
decides an investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third party. When the 
investigation is complete, the results will be presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the 
investigation, the Board shall decide, within [20] days, in open session what action, if any, is warranted. 
 
Timelines may be extended upon written agreement between both parties. This also applies to reports filed 
against the superintendent or any Board member. 
 
Direct complaints of discriminatory harassment related to educational programs and services may be made 
to the Regional Civil Rights Director, U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights, Region X, 
915 Second Ave., Room 3310, Seattle, WA  98174-1099. 
 
Documentation related to the incident may be maintained as a part of the student’s education records. 
[Additionally, a copy of all reported acts of [hazing, ]harassment, intimidation or bullying,[ menacing,] 
acts of or cyberbullying, and or incidents of teen dating violence complaints and documentation will be 
maintained as a confidential file in the district office.] 

 
Page 49



R7/01/172/28/19│PH [Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, 
Cyberbullying, Teen Dating Violence, and or  

Domestic Violence – Student** – JFCF 
1-4 

 

OSBA Model Sample Policy 
 
Code: JFCF 
Adopted:  
 
[Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, Cyberbullying, 

Teen Dating Violence, and or Domestic Violence – Student** 
(Version 2) 

 
The Board, in its commitment to providing a safe, positive, and productive learning environment for all 
students, will consult with parents/guardians, employees, volunteers, students, administrators, and 
community representatives in developing this policy in compliance with applicable Oregon Revised 
Statutes (ORS)law. 

[Hazing,] [h]arassment, intimidation or bullying[, menacing], and acts of cyberbullying by students, staff, 
andor third parties toward students is strictly prohibited. Teen dating violence is unacceptable behavior 
and prohibited. 

Retaliation against any person who is a victim of, who reports, is thought to have reported, or files a 
complaint about an act of [hazing,] harassment, intimidation or bullying, [menacing,] an act of 
cyberbullying, or teen dating violence, or otherwise participates in an investigation or inquiry is also 
strictly prohibited. A person who engages in retaliatory behavior will be subject to consequences and 
appropriate remedial action. False charges shall also be regarded as a serious offense and will result in 
disciplinary action or other consequences and appropriate sanctions remedial action. 

Students whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to consequences and 
appropriate remedial action which may include discipline, up to and including expulsion. The district may 
also file a request with the Oregon Department of Transportation to suspend the driving privileges or the 
right to apply for driving privileges of a student 15 years of age or older who has been suspended or 
expelled at least twice for assaulting or menacing another student or employee, willful damage or injury to 
district property or for the use of threats, intimidation, harassment, or coercion against a district employee 
or another student. 
 
Staff whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to consequences and 
appropriate remedial action which may include discipline, up to and including dismissal. Third parties 
whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as 
determined and imposed by the superintendent or the Board. 
 
Students, staff, or third parties may also be referred to law enforcement officials. 
 
The [principal] and the] superintendent [are] [is] responsible for ensuring that this policy is implemented. 
 
Definitions 
 
“District” includes district facilities, district premises, and nondistrict property if the student is at any 
district-sponsored, district-approved, or district-related activity or function, such as field trips or athletic 
events where students are under the control jurisdiction of the district. 

 
Page 50



R7/01/172/28/19│PH [Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, 
Cyberbullying, Teen Dating Violence, and or  

Domestic Violence – Student** – JFCF 
2-4 

 

“Third parties” include, but are not limited to, coaches, school volunteers, parents, school visitors, service 
contractors, or others engaged in district business, such as employees of businesses or organizations 
participating in cooperative work programs with the district and others not directly subject to district 
control at interdistrict and intradistrict athletic competitions or other school events. 
 
[“Hazing” includes, but is not limited to, any act that recklessly or intentionally endangers the mental 
health, physical health or safety of a student for the purpose of initiation or as a condition or precondition 
of attaining membership in, or affiliation with, any district-sponsored activity or grade level attainment,[.] 
[(i.e., personal servitude, sexual stimulation/sexual assault, forced consumption of any drink, alcoholic 
beverage, drug or controlled substance, forced exposure to the elements, forced prolonged exclusion from 
social contact, sleep deprivation or any other forced activity that could adversely affect the mental or 
physical health or safety of a student);] [requires, encourages, authorizes or permits another to be subject 
to wearing or carrying any obscene or physically burdensome article; or assignment of pranks to be 
performed or other such activities intended to degrade or humiliate.] It is not a defense against hazing that 
the student subjected to hazing consented to or appeared to consent to the hazing.] 
 
“Harassment, intimidation or bullying” means any act that substantially interferes with a student’s 
educational benefits, opportunities or performance, that takes place on or immediately adjacent to district 
grounds, at any district-sponsored activity, on district-provided transportation, or at any official district bus 
stop, that may be based on, but not limited to, the protected class status of a person, having the effect of: 
 
1. Physically harming a student or damaging a student’s property; 

2. Knowingly placing a student in reasonable fear of physical harm to the student or damage to the 
student’s property; or 

3. Creating a hostile educational environment including interfering with the psychological well-being 
of the student and may be based on, but not limited to, the protected class of the person. 

“Protected class” means a group of persons distinguished, or perceived to be distinguished, by race, color, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation1, national origin, marital status, familial status, source of income, or 
disability. 
 
“Teen dating violence” means: 
 
1. A pattern of behavior in which a person uses or threatens to use physical, mental, or emotional abuse 

to control another person who is in a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons 
are 13 to 19 years of age; or 

2. Behavior by which a person uses or threatens to use sexual violence against another person who is in 
a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons are 13 to 19 years of age. 

                                                 
1 “Sexual orientation” means an individual’s actual or perceived heterosexuality, homosexuality, bisexuality or gender identity, 
regardless of whether the individual’s gender identity, appearance, expression or behaviors differs from that traditionally 
associated with the individual’s sex at birth. 

 
Page 51



R7/01/172/28/19│PH [Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, 
Cyberbullying, Teen Dating Violence, and or  

Domestic Violence – Student** – JFCF 
3-4 

 

“Domestic violence” means abuse between family and/or household members, as those terms are 
described in ORS 107.705. 
 
“Cyberbullying” is the use of any electronic communication device to harass, intimidate or bully. 
[Students and staff will refrain from using personal communication devices or district [property] 
[equipment] to violate this policy.] 

“Retaliation” means any acts of, including but not limited to, [hazing, ]harassment, intimidation or 
bullying,[ menacing,] teen dating violence, and acts ofor cyberbullying toward the victim, a person in 
response to an student for actually or apparently reporting of, or participatingion in the investigation of, 
[hazing,] harassment, intimidation or bullying,[ menacing,] teen dating violence, and acts of cyberbullying, 
or retaliation. 
 
[“Menacing” includes, but is not limited to, any act intended to place a district employee, student, or third 
party in fear of imminent serious physical injury.] 
 
Reporting 
 
The [employee position title2] will take reports and conduct a prompt investigation of any reported of an 
acts of [hazing,] harassment, intimidation or bullying,[ menacing,] and acts of cyberbullying, or teen 
dating violence. Any employee who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy shall 
immediately report his/her concerns to the [employee position title] who has overall responsibility for all 
investigations. Any employee who has knowledge of incidents of teen dating violence that took place on 
district property, at a district-sponsored activity, or in a district vehicle or vehicle used for transporting 
students to a district activitydistrict-provided transportation shall immediately report the incident to the 
[employee position title]. Failure of an employee to report any act of [hazing,] harassment, intimidation or 
bullying[, menacing], or an act of cyberbullying, or teen dating violence to the [employee position title] 
may be subject to remedial action, up to and including dismissal. Remedial action may not be based solely 
on an anonymous report. 
 
Any student who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this policy or feels he/she has they have been 
subjected to an act of [hazing,] harassment, intimidation or bullying,[ menacing,] is or cyberbullying or 
feel they have been a victim of teen dating violence or an act of cyberbullying in violation of this policy, is 
encouraged to immediately report his/her concerns to the [employee position title] who has overall 
responsibility for all investigations. Any volunteer who has knowledge of conduct in violation of this 
policy is encouraged to immediately report his/her concerns to the [employee position title] who has 
overall responsibility for all investigations. This A report made by a student or volunteer may be made 
anonymously. A student or volunteer may also report concerns to a teacher or counselor who will be 
responsible for notifying the appropriate district official. 
 
Complaints Reports against the principal shall be filed with the superintendent. Complaints Reports 
against the superintendent shall be filed with the Board chair. 
 

                                                 
2 [Required by ORS 339.356(2)(g). Other bracketed language regarding hazing and menacing exceeds the requirements of ORS 
339.356 and is under Board authority ORS 332.107.] 

 
Page 52



R7/01/172/28/19│PH [Hazing, ]Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, [Menacing, ]Bullying, 
Cyberbullying, Teen Dating Violence, and or  

Domestic Violence – Student** – JFCF 
4-4 

 

The complainant person who makes the report shall be notified of the findings of when the investigation 
has been completed and, as appropriate, that the findings of the investigation and any remedial action that 
has been taken. The complainant person who made the report may request that the [superintendent] review 
the actions taken in the initial investigation, in accordance with [administrative regulations] [district 
complaint procedures]. 
 
Training and Education 
 
The district shall incorporate into existing training programs for students, information related to the 
prevention of, and the appropriate response to, acts of harassment, intimidation or bullying, and acts of 
cyberbullying and this policy. 

The district shall incorporate age-appropriate education about teen dating violence and domestic violence 
into new or existing training programs for students in grades 7 through 12. 
 
The district shall incorporate into existing training programs for staff information related to the prevention 
of, and the appropriate response to, acts of harassment, intimidation or bullying, teen dating violence, 
domestic violence, and acts of cyberbullying and this policy. 
 
Notice 
 
The superintendent shall be responsible for ensuring annual notice of this policy is provided in a student or 
employee staff handbook, school and district’s website, and school and district office[ and the 
development of administrative regulations, including reporting and investigative procedures].[ Complaint 
procedures, as established by the district, shall be followed.] 

Domestic violence posters provided by the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) shall be posted in 
clearly visible locations on school campuses in accordance with rules adopted by the ODE. 
 
END OF POLICY 
 

Legal Reference(s): 
 
[ORS 163.190] 
[ORS 163.197] 
ORS 107.705 
ORS 166.065 
ORS 166.155 - 166.165 
ORS 174.100(7) 

ORS 332.072 
ORS 332.107 
ORS 339.240 
ORS 339.250 
ORS 339.254 
ORS 339.351 - 339.3668 

OAR 581-021-0045 
OAR 581-021-0046 
OAR 581-021-0055 
OAR 581-022-2310 
OAR 581-022-2370

 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d (2012). 

 
Page 53

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-163
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-163
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-107
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-166
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-166
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-174
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581


Attachment  

 

BOARD 
MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: Bo Yates, Superintendent 
 
Date: September 6, 2019                     Meeting Date:  September 12, 2019    
 
Re: OSCIM Grant Application 
 
 
Please see the attached Facilities Assessment Report and Long-Range Facilities Plan that 
was provided to us from Soderstrom Architects.  Board approval is needed in order for 
the district to complete the OSCIM Grant application and submit it to the state.   
 
Both of these reports have been presented to our facilities committee for review as well. 

 
Page 54



 
Page 55



 
Page 56



 
Page 57



 
Page 58



 
Page 59



 
Page 60



 
Page 61



 
Page 62



 
Page 63



 
Page 64



 
Page 65



 
Page 66



 
Page 67



 
Page 68



 
Page 69



 
Page 70



 
Page 71



 
Page 72



 
Page 73



 
Page 74



 
Page 75



 
Page 76



 
Page 77



 
Page 78



 
Page 79



 
Page 80



 
Page 81



 
Page 82



 
Page 83



 
Page 84



 
Page 85



 
Page 86



 
Page 87



 
Page 88



 
Page 89



 
Page 90



 
Page 91



 
Page 92



 
Page 93



 
Page 94



 
Page 95



 
Page 96



 
Page 97



 
Page 98



 
Page 99



 
Page 100



 
Page 101



 
Page 102



 
Page 103



 
Page 104



 
Page 105



 
Page 106



 
Page 107



 
Page 108



 
Page 109



 
Page 110



 
Page 111



 
Page 112



 
Page 113



 
Page 114



 
Page 115



 
Page 116



 
Page 117



 
Page 118



 
Page 119



 
Page 120



 
Page 121



 
Page 122



 
Page 123



 
Page 124



 
Page 125



 
Page 126



 
Page 127



 
Page 128



 
Page 129



 
Page 130



 
Page 131



 
Page 132



 
Page 133



 
Page 134



 
Page 135



 
Page 136



 
Page 137



 
Page 138



 
Page 139



 
Page 140



 
Page 141



 
Page 142



 
Page 143



 
Page 144



 
Page 145



 
Page 146



 
Page 147



 
Page 148



 
Page 149



 
Page 150



 
Page 151



 
Page 152



 
Page 153



 
Page 154



 
Page 155



 
Page 156



 
Page 157



 
Page 158



 
Page 159



 
Page 160



 
Page 161



 
Page 162



 
Page 163



 
Page 164



 
Page 165



 
Page 166



 
Page 167



 
Page 168



 
Page 169



 
Page 170



 
Page 171



 
Page 172



 
Page 173



 
Page 174



 
Page 175



 
Page 176



 
Page 177



 
Page 178



 
Page 179



 
Page 180



 
Page 181



 
Page 182



 
Page 183



 
Page 184



 
Page 185



 
Page 186



 
Page 187



 
Page 188



 
Page 189



 
Page 190



 
Page 191



 
Page 192



 
Page 193



 
Page 194



 
Page 195



 
Page 196



 
Page 197



 
Page 198



 
Page 199



 
Page 200



 
Page 201



 
Page 202



 
Page 203



 
Page 204



 
Page 205



 
Page 206



 
Page 207



 
Page 208



 
Page 209



 
Page 210



 
Page 211



 
Page 212



 
Page 213



 
Page 214



 
Page 215



 
Page 216



 
Page 217



 
Page 218



 
Page 219



 
Page 220



 
Page 221



 
Page 222



 
Page 223



 
Page 224



 
Page 225



 
Page 226



 
Page 227



 
Page 228



 
Page 229



 
Page 230



 
Page 231



 
Page 232



 

BOARD 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

To: The Honorable Chair and Members 
 Lebanon Community School District Board of Directors 
 
From: William H. Lewis III, Business Director 
 
Date: September 05, 2019    Meeting Date:  September 12, 2019 
 
 
Re: Financial Report  
 
 
 
 
Financial Report 
 
The 2019-2020 Financial Board Report included in this packet reflects all revenues and 
expenditures for 2015-2018, and the budgeted, YTD expenditures, plus encumbered amounts for 
2019-2020 as of 9/05/19.  
 
The Lebanon Community School District has an opportunity to refund its 2011 general obligation 
bonds. Bond interest rates are currently favorable to this type of refunding. We will review the 
attached information (summary of refunding bond results) during the meeting. We would like to 
request approval of the refunding resolution to take advantage of this favorable interest rate 
environment.  
 
 
See attachment for additional information. 
 
Attachment 

 
Page 233



 2019-2020 General Fund Expenditure Report

  

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 | 19/20 9-05-19 9-05-19 9-05-19

Obj Description Actual Actual Actual Project | Budget YTD Encumb Balance
|

111      Certified salaries 9,311,147   10,161,648 10,831,007  12,299,845   | 12,665,056  93,445         11,748,311  823,300       
112      Classified salaries 4,164,521   4,545,055   4,757,666    5,617,686     | 6,227,931    317,563       5,425,781    484,587       
113      Administrative salaries 1,464,907   1,648,330   1,614,127    1,782,092     | 1,873,807    289,860       1,411,501    172,446       
114      Managerial - classified 94,714        178,755      187,797       249,120        | 154,577       46,181         231,328       (122,932)     
116      Retirement stipends 76,123        51,134        35,621         19,904          | 91,904         1,275           78,374         12,255         
119      Confidential salaries 125,785      84,504        131,698       159,789        | 162,808       37,082         185,752       (60,026)       
121      Certified subs 373,350      432,293      446,157       43,660          | 2,000           -              -              2,000           
122      Classified subs 148,818      155,004      150,074       42,523          | 1,500           18,745         -              (17,245)       
123      Temp certified 62,030        73,949        133,971       162,287        | 82,264         -              -              82,264         
124      Temp classified 982             -              -              23,111          | 8,000           8,029           -              (29)              
127      Student helpers salaries 11,768        7,895          6,544           4,413            | 21,000         4,885           -              16,115         
131      Overtime -              -              -              50,768          | -              -              -              -              
132      Compensation time 23,861        25,767        37,764         77,738          | 52,300         5,167           -              47,133         
133      Extra duty 254,381      324,897      286,017       350,933        | 279,579       43,964         7,250           228,365       
134      Classified extra hrs 142,975      185,048      192,566       200,393        | 208,000       -              -              208,000       
135      Vacation Payoff 4,377          6,938          12,246         14,017          | 29,817         81                -              29,736         
136      Mentor teacher pay 990             609             -              -                | -              -              -              -              
137      Personal Leave Payout 75               -              -              -                | -              -              -              -              
138      Department Head Extra Duty 2,159          1,613          1,556           788               | 6,000           1,000           5,000           -              
140      Salary Settlements -              -              -              | -              -              -              -              
142      Taxable Meal Reimbursement 436             903             1,503           2,073            | -              52                -              (52)              
143      Cell Phone Stipend | -              180              900              (1,080)         
145      Travel Stipend  | -              1,900           9,500           (11,400)       
150      Club Advisor 34,950          | 29,650         23,746         10,250         (4,346)         

Total Salaries 16,263,399 17,884,343 18,826,313 21,136,091 | 21,896,193 893,155 19,113,947 1,889,092
| -              

210      PERS 3,976,407   4,187,401   4,442,519    5,780,868     | 7,398,130    295,418       6,178,458    924,254       
220      Social Security 1,207,537   1,328,140   1,385,595    1,550,125     | 1,655,388    66,411         1,385,942    203,035       
231      Worker's Comp 136,822      173,370      196,943       238,867        | 293,025       12,348         156,319       124,358       
241      Employee Ins - Admin 177,948      212,862      208,912       239,427        | 215,642       39,836         193,244       (17,438)       
242      Employee Ins - Certified 2,307,416   2,328,554   2,370,817    2,831,052     | 2,449,421    6,933           2,294,594    147,894       
243      Employee Ins - Classified 1,874,827   2,137,321   2,102,847    2,408,513     | 2,327,520    94,678         2,086,014    146,828       
244      Employee Ins - Other 20,700        7,731          27,124         36,487          | 33,429         7,442           37,211         (11,224)       
245      Employee Ins - Retired 276,090      228,774      195,821       122,925        | 83,600         6,620           -              76,980         
247      TSA 42,912        40,991        22,082         24,336          | 25,200         7,600           38,000         (20,400)       

Total Benefits 10,020,660 10,645,144 10,952,659 13,232,600 | 14,481,355 537,286 12,369,782 1,574,287
-              |  

311      Instructional Services 152,856      157,581      110,051       121,558        | 103,800       -              4,080           99,720         
312      Instr Prog Improve Service 43,468        36,748        39,424         33,042          | 53,000         20,351         -              32,649         

 
Page 234



 2019-2020 General Fund Expenditure Report

319      Other Instr-Prof-Tech SVCS 21,870        9,745          23,110         11,205          | 20,000         -              -              20,000         
322      Repairs & Maintenance 163,270      168,482      173,295       254,579        | 190,300       33,545         15,875         140,880       
323      Radio Service -              7,767          38,310         12,455          | 11,100         252              252              10,596         
324      Rentals 135,308      104,777      102,560       121,067        | 129,400       707              461              128,232       
325      Electricity 467,896      473,758      466,093       453,206        | 502,620       54,165         365,824       82,631         
326      Fuel 177,759      187,899      223,740       181,534        | 223,135       4,804           107,196       111,135       
327      Water & Sewer 139,255      121,239      150,725       138,029        | 153,520       259              -              153,261       
328      Garbage 86,324        96,811        95,095         112,864        | 102,400       -              -              102,400       
329      Other Property Services 13,001        19,246        34,726         10,550          | 20,000         105              -              19,895         
330      Reimb. Student Transportation 6,950          -              1,589           (64,563)         | 10,200         -              -              10,200         
340      Travel 114,592      140,225      178,985       149,454        | 164,930       2,847           59                162,024       
343      Travel - Student - Out of Dist. -              -              2,916           1,140            | 5,300           -              -              5,300           
346      Meals/Transportation 104             48               99                153               | 200              -              -              200              
348      Staff Tuition 49,577        44,768        71,830         92,746          | 47,000         1,616           6,322           39,062         
351      Telephone 82,642        70,529        39,486         44,987          | 73,165         7,168           31,001         34,996         
353      Postage 23,607        21,909        14,712         24,224          | 26,074         3,407           -              22,667         
354      Advertising 4,416          3,551          1,087           2,761            | 4,300           -              -              4,300           
355      Printing & Binding 68,861        48,223        51,996         13,712          | 29,400         -              2,100           27,300         
360      Charter School Payments 2,064,403   1,961,788   1,866,943    2,159,564     | 2,195,000    558,060       -              1,636,940    
371      Tuitions Payments to Other Dist. 40,570        29,701        29,536         -                | -              -              -              -              
373      Tuition Pay Private School -              -              -              -                | 5,000           -              -              5,000           
374      Other Tuition 605,954      625,503      162,192       240,090        | 92,500         -              -              92,500         
381      Audit Services 27,650        25,150        27,700         29,150          | 30,000         -              -              30,000         
382      Legal Services 2,028          5,288          11,261         33,971          | 35,000         5,394           -              29,606         
384      Negotiation Services 5,934          13,784        8,590           -                | 10,000         -              -              10,000         
386      Data Processing SVCS 59,787        76,794        75,380         65,278          | 89,600         4,706           -              84,894         
388      Election Services 4,565          -              1,573           4,623            | 5,000           -              -              5,000           
389      Other Non_instr Pro/Tech 515,889      539,114      292,488       451,897        | 363,700       114,056       12,279         237,365       
391      Physical Exams - Drivers 2,380          3,168          4,193           4,072            | 4,400           215              3,285           900              
392      Drug Tests Drivers 1,110          635             1,255           1,670            | 3,000           -              2,000           1,000           
393      Child Care Services 22,000        22,000        22,000         -                | 15,000         -              -              15,000         
394      Sub calling service 5,559          7,489          6,464           14,113          | 15,000         8,730           -              6,270           
395      Classified subs -              -              226,030        | 194,000       504              -              193,496       
396      Criminal History checks 2,546          2,928          3,179           4,066            | 3,200           -              -              3,200           
398      Fingerprinting 639             462             266              38                 | 1,000           -              -              1,000           

399      Classified subs -              -              499,109        | 425,000       -              -              425,000       
Total P. Services 5,112,768 5,027,111 4,332,849 5,448,375 | 5,356,244 820,891 550,734 3,984,619

|  
406      Gas Oil & Lubricants 152,805      103,868      115,426       190,500        | 190,500       4,007           155,915       30,578         
410      Supplies & Materials 457,671      419,096      486,014       452,860        | 648,024       23,184         13,379         611,461       
413      Vehicle repair parts 50,201        48,980        44,746         27,649          | 52,800         3,721           32,279         16,800         
414      Transportation operations 5,674          6,060          8,776           30,655          | 15,000         8,997           8,743           (2,740)         

 
Page 235



 2019-2020 General Fund Expenditure Report

420      Textbooks 240,685      131,379      83,687         68,642          | 24,700         156              368              24,176         
430      Library Books 9,934          8,588          5,880           5,914            | 15,694         -              -              15,694         
440      Periodicals 6,012          1,937          5,354           6,511            | 6,000           180              -              5,820           
460      Equipment under 5K 125,632      212,514      184,119       162,389        | 178,842       9,858           728              168,256       
470      Computer software 173,513      195,888      181,289       184,472        | 264,360       73,858         22,714         167,788       
480      Computer hardware 255,516      252,444      221,873       146,797        | 170,593       11,392         -              159,201       

Total Supplies & Materials 1,477,643 1,380,753 1,337,164 1,276,389 | 1,566,513 135,353 234,126 1,197,034
|  

540      Equipment 6,779          20,047        65,034         39,805          | 54,500         18,799         3,500           32,201         
550      Depreciable Technology 7,579            -              -              9,000           (9,000)         
564      Bus Replacement -              258               | -              -              -              -              

Total Capital Outlay 6,779 20,047 65,034 47,641 | 54,500 18,799 12,500 23,201
|  

621      Regular Interest -              -              -              -                | 500              -              -              500              
640      Dues & Fees 92,488        67,655        178,632       101,706        | 171,847       21,077         759              150,011       
650      Insurance & Judgments 216,456      218,639      230,250       245,279        | 265,588       257,819       -              7,769           
659      Settlements -              -              34,000         | -              -              -              -              
670      Taxes & Licenses 49               -              -              -                | 200              -              -              200              

Total Other Objects 308,993 286,294 442,882 346,985 | 438,135 278,896 759 158,480
|  

707      Transfer -  Vocational House Fund -              -              40,000          | -              -              -              -              
710      Transfer - Technology 175,000      200,000      225,000       100,000        | -              -              -              -              
711      Transfer - Classroom Furniture 50,000        50,000        25,000         50,000          | -              -              -              -              
712      Transfer - Textbook Adoption 350,000      350,000      300,000       400,000        | 400,000       -              -              400,000       
713      Transfer - Capital Improvement 225,000      250,000      250,000       400,000        | -              -              -              
714      Transfer - Track and Turf Fund 110,000      110,000      10,000         85,000          | 10,000         -              -              10,000         
715      Transfer - Athletic Fund 365,000      365,000      405,000       446,000        | 450,000       -              -              450,000       
716      Transfer - Bus Replacement 250,000      250,000      250,000       300,000        | 150,000       -              -              150,000       
717      Transfer - Unemploy Ins 25,000        15,000        25,000         25,000          | 25,000         -              -              25,000         
718      PERS Reserve 150,000      500,000      500,000       525,000        | -              -              -              -              
719      Transfer - Food Service 50,000        65,225        90,656         100,000        | 100,000       -              -              100,000       
730      Transfer - Debt Service -              -              100,000       150,000        | 50,000         -              -              50,000         
731      Transfer  - Academic Achievement 10,000        -              -              -                | -              -              -              -              

Total Transfers 1,760,000   2,155,225   2,180,656    2,621,000     | 1,185,000    -              -              1,185,000    
| -              

810      Reserve/Contingency -              -              -              -                | 1,750,000    -              -              1,750,000    
 |

Grand Total 34,950,241 37,398,917 38,137,559  44,109,082   | 46,727,940  2,684,380    32,281,848  11,761,713  
========= ========= ========= ========= ========= ========= ========= =========

 
Page 236



 2019-2020 General Fund Summary Report

|
15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 | 19/20 9-05-19 9-05-19

Actual Actual Actual Projected | Budget YTD & Enc Balance

General Fund - Revenue   |
|

SSF Formula 36,036,233        37,131,855 40,190,370  39,633,000  | 42,592,940 7,817,340    34,775,600  
SSF Adjustment (254,069)            390,697      280,233       -              | -              -              -               
Interest 91,245               156,492      267,981       100,000       | 300,000      -              300,000       
Third Party Billing 45,178               102,447      72,379         80,000         | -              -              -               
TMR 149,514             208,252      210,894       175,000       | 150,000      -              150,000       
JROTC 66,034               73,726        69,777         65,000         | 65,000        12,008         52,992         
Other 297,128             299,398      360,539       420,000       | 490,000      37,280         452,720       
Interfund Transfer 60,000               60,000        82,657         70,000         | 850,000      -              850,000       
BFB 3,932,387          3,024,733   3,310,041    5,075,000    | 2,280,000   -              2,280,000    

Total 40,423,650        41,447,600 44,844,870  45,618,000  | 46,727,940 7,866,628    38,861,312  

======== ======== ======== ======== | ======== ======== ========

|
General Fund - Expenses |

|
Salaries 17,884,343        18,826,313 19,506,444  21,146,522  | 21,896,193 20,007,102  1,889,092    
Benefits 10,645,144        10,952,659 12,144,929  13,883,105  | 14,481,355 12,907,068  1,574,287    
P. Services 5,027,111          4,332,849   4,321,151    4,804,971    | 5,356,244   1,371,625    3,984,619    
Supplies 1,380,753          1,337,164   1,742,328    1,670,267    | 1,566,513   369,479       1,197,034    
Capital Outlay 20,047               65,034        195,888       54,500         | 54,500        31,299         23,201         
Other Objects 286,294             442,882      335,817       437,635       | 438,135      279,655       158,480       
Transfers 2,155,225          2,180,656   1,335,000    2,621,000    | 1,185,000   -              1,185,000    
Contingency -                     -              -              1,000,000    | 1,750,000   -              1,750,000    

Total 37,398,917        38,137,559 39,581,557  45,618,000  | 46,727,940 34,966,228  11,761,713  

======== ======== ======== ======== | ======== ======== ========

 
Page 237



 2019-2020 General Fund Revenue Report

15/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 | 19/20 9-05-19 9-05-19 |

 Actual Actual Actual Project | Budget YTD Balance |

  | || |

SSF Formula | |

1111, Taxes 8,533,160    9,048,901    10,057,517  10,136,079  | 10,633,240    -              10,633,240   |

4801,4899 Federal Forest Fees 205,708       23,160         142,770       179,478       | 130,000         -              130,000        |

3103 Common School 492,013       502,314       410,848       437,082       | 405,245         -              405,245        |

3104 State Timber 181,382       137,286       167,068       167,048       | 160,000         -              160,000        |

3101/3199 School Support Fund 26,623,971  27,420,195  29,412,167  29,101,930  | 31,264,455    7,817,340    23,447,115   |

Adjustments to SSF Payments | -                |

    Adj for Prior Year payments (330,463)     261,223       250,598       (755,646)     | -                |

    Adj for HC Disability Grant 76,394         129,474       29,635         439,748       | -                 -              -                |

Total SSF Formula 35,782,164  37,522,552  40,470,603  39,705,718  | 42,592,940    7,817,340    34,775,600   |

| -                |

1510 Interest on Investments 91,245         156,492       267,981       322,591       | 300,000         -              300,000        |
| -                |

4200 Third Party billing 45,178         102,447       72,379         72,372         | -                 -              -                |
| -                |

2210 TMR 149,514       208,252       210,894       180,556       | 150,000         -              150,000        |
| -                |

4300 JROTC reimbursement 66,034         73,726         69,777         35,236         | 65,000           12,008         52,992          |
| -                |

Other | -                |

1910 Rental Fees 10,474         9,114           7,731           3,626           | 10,000           150              9,850            |

1980 Fees Charged to Grants 800              -              -              -              | 100,000         -              100,000        |

1312, 
1960,
 1990, 
5300 Miscellaneous 202,944       213,437       284,801       358,144       | 300,000         37,130         262,870        |

1994 E-Rate reimbursement 82,910         76,847         68,007         -              | 80,000           -              80,000          |
| -                |

5200 Interfund Transfer - Athletics 60,000         60,000         82,657         8,029           | 850,000         -              850,000        |
| -                |

5400 Beginning Fund Balance 3,932,387    3,024,733    3,310,041    5,263,314    | 2,280,000      -              2,280,000     |
| -                |

Total 40,423,650  41,447,600  44,844,870  45,949,586  | 46,727,940    7,866,628    38,861,312   |
======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ========

 
Page 238


	2019-9-12 Board Meeting Agenda
	School Improvement Plan Memorandum
	School Improvement
	Summer School Final Report
	Lebanon SD Auth Res 9.9.19
	Numbers Lebanon Comm. SD 2011 GO Taxable Adv. Ref. 8-14-19
	updated Schedule Lebanon SD GO 2019 Ref 9-10-19
	August 8, 2019 Board Minutes
	August signed Oaths of Office
	Bond Opportunity
	OSCIM Bond Opportunity
	LCSD Needs Your Support

	Org Chart 19-20 Final
	GBNA R G1
	1. “Third parties” include, but are not limited to, coaches, school volunteers, parents, school visitors, service contractors, or others engaged in district business, such as employees of businesses or organizations participating in cooperative work p...
	2. “District” includes district facilities, district premises, and nondistrict property if the employee is at any district-sponsored, district-approved, or district-related activity or function, such as field trips, athletic events or where the employ...
	3. “Hazing” includes, but is not limited to, any act that recklessly or intentionally endangers the mental health, physical health or safety of a student/staff member for the purpose of initiation or as a condition or precondition of attaining members...
	4. “Harassment” includes, but is not limited to, any act which subjects an individual or group to unwanted, abusive behavior of a nonverbal, verbal, written or physical nature is unwelcome conduct that is based on race, color, religion, sex (including...
	5. “Intimidation” includes, but is not limited to, any threat or act intended to tamper, substantially damage or interfere with another’s property, cause substantial inconvenience, subject another to offensive physical contact or inflict serious physi...
	6. “Bullying” is a pattern of repeated mistreatment that harms, intimidates, undermines, offends, degrades, or humiliates an employee.
	7. “Cyberbullying” means the use of any electronic communication device to [convey a message in any form (e.g., text, image, audio, or video) that intimidates, harasses, or otherwise harms, insults, or humiliates another in a deliberate, repeated or h...
	8. “Menacing” includes, but is not limited to, any act intended to place a district employee, student, or third party in fear of imminent serious physical injury.

	GBNA G1
	JFCF R G2
	JFCF G2
	1. Physically harming a student or damaging a student’s property;
	2. Knowingly placing a student in reasonable fear of physical harm to the student or damage to the student’s property; or
	3. Creating a hostile educational environment including interfering with the psychological well-being of the student and may be based on, but not limited to, the protected class of the person.
	1. A pattern of behavior in which a person uses or threatens to use physical, mental, or emotional abuse to control another person who is in a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons are 13 to 19 years of age; or
	2. Behavior by which a person uses or threatens to use sexual violence against another person who is in a dating relationship with the person, where one or both persons are 13 to 19 years of age.

	OSCIM Grant Approval Memorandum
	Facilities Assessment Report
	Long-Range Facilities Plan
	9-05-19 Financial Report & Memo
	Re: Financial Report
	Financial Report

	2019-2020 Financial Board Reports 09-05-19 Expenditures
	2019-2020 Financial Board Reports 09-05-19 Overview
	2019-2020 Financial Board Reports 09-05-19 Revenue



